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www .blackrock.com/corporate/sustainability
https://www.blackrock.com/corporate/about-us/investment-stewardship#our-responsibility
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2023
78,000,680 43.91
31,519,209 17.74
15,786,534 8.89

8,489,025 4.78
8,247,889 4.64
7,201,903 4.05
4,445,612 2.50
3,499,557 1.97
3,448,950 1.94
2,702,260 1.52
2,681,155 1.51
2,537,894 1.43
2,001,049 1.13
1,662,659 0.94
1,300,362 0.73
173,524,738 97.68
2,776,112 1.56
176,300,850 99.25
1,339,986 0.75
(21?25840’836) 100.00
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2023
WICROSOFT CORP 26,431.00 | 255.00 | 6,739,862.04 | 334.80| 8,849,098.80 | 4.98
SANOF 52,893.00 | 99.09 | 5,241,033.08| 101.27| 5,356,230.29| 3.02
RECKITT BENCKISER GROP 68,173.00 | 79.53 | 5,421,792.15| 77.86 | 5,308.214.33|  2.99
TAIVAN SEMICONDUCTOR
T CoC o 276,000.00 |  15.59 | 4,303,279.77 | 18.16 | 5.012,057.60| 2.8
ASTRAZENECA PLC 34,643.00 | 119.84 | 4,151,453.84 | 144.54| 5,007,200.47 | 2.82
APPLE INC 27,201.00 | 155.90 | 4,240,592.42 | 178.92| 4.866,666.92| 2.74
ACCENTURE PLC *A" 15,856.00 | 269.07 | 4,266,383.40 | 306.20| 4,855.,107.20| 2.73
PHILIP NORRIS
o e 51,540.00 | 93.62| 4.826,107.83| 90.19| 4,649,204.31| 2.62
ABBVIE INC 32,732.00 129.81 4,248,883.62 135.97 4,450,570.04 2.51
10 | PavcHEX INC 41,625.00 | 108.56 | 4,518,696.77 | 105.90 | 4,408,087.50 |  2.48
11 | DIAGEO PLC 104,201.00 |  43.64 | 4,547,366.90 | 41.73| 4,348,265.34 |  2.45
12 “I"SQD?IEZ INTERNATIONAL 51,264.00 |  68.93| 3,533,586.47 | 72.69| 3,726.380.16| 2.10
13 | OTIS WORLDWIDE CORP 46,243.00 | 74.58 | 3,448,652.08| 79.89| 3,694.353.27 |  2.08
14 | RELX PLC 117,363.00 | 27.19| 3,191,379.45 | 31.45| 3,690,506.69 |  2.08
15 [ ZJRICH INSURANCE GROUP 7,652.00 | 472.23| 3.,613,538.25 | 475.54| 3,638,818.82| 2.05
16 | MEDTRONIC PLC 44,219.00 93.05 4,114,428.37 82.18 3,633,917.42 2.05
17 | unITEDHEALTH GROUP INC 7,587.00 | 446.93 | 3.,390,826.36 | 478.50 | 3.631,062.33| 2.04
INTERCONTINENTAL
18 | T 34,254.00 | 107.98| 3.698,504.00| 104.60| 3,582,968.40| 2.02
19 | THE WALT DISNEY CoMPANY 40,798.00 | 105.47 | 4,302,046.10 | 87.50| 3,573,496.82| 2.01
20 | LONZA GROUP AG REG 5,707.00 | 542.94| 3,098,566.01| 624.34| 3,563,083.99| 2.01
21 | TAYLOR WIMPEY PLC 2,521,376.00 1.65| 4,158,958.79 1.41| 3,555,058.38 |  2.00
INTERNATIONAL FLAVORS &
22 [ INIERMTIOVL 46,027.00 |  98.25| 4,522,036.24| 77.23| 3.554.665.21|  2.00
23 | BAKER HUGHES CO 129,154.00 | 27.17| 3.508,824.79 | 27.43| 3.,542.694.22 | 1.99
24 | INTUIT INC 8,609.00 | 423.25| 3,643,760.67 | 409.93 | 3,529,087.37| 1.9
25 E“E‘L(’:\”ﬁART DE MEXICO SAB 916,941.00 3.71|  3,402,691.55 3.82| 3,490,556.98 | 1.97
26 [ N ITED PARCEL SERVICE 20,791.00 | 189.88 | 3,047,777.53 | 167.49| 3,482.284.50| 1.96
27 | NovO NORDISK A/S B 21,522.00 | 110.64 | 2,381,288.06| 160.25| 3,448,950.45| 1.94
28 | ESSILORLUXOTTICA SA 18,998.00 179.75 3,414,942 .67 181.13 3,441,166.15 1.94
29 | SHELL PLC 122,514.00 |  30.39 | 3.723,330.62 | 28.06| 3,437.145.68 | 1.93
30 | PRUDENTIAL PLC 256,011.00 16.45 4,211,404.51 13.18 3,373,569.73 1.90
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2011 26
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2014 102,369,242 14,308,149 12.25 1,712
o1 109,709,927 15,334,156 12.79 1,788
sote 74,759,563 10,449,144 12.16 1,700
2015 56,100,279 7,841,136 13.00 1,817
ot 51,781,761 7,237,537 15.43 2,157
o 38,005,128 5,311,977 13.27 1,855
S0 38,532,969 5,385,753 14.95 2,090
- 33,807,455 4,725,268 15.44 2,158
. 40,520,691 5,663,577 17.02 2,379
o0os 30,188,735 4,219,479 15.79 2,207
2022 33,861,356 4,732,802 14.80 2,069
32,026,609 4,476,359 15.64 2,186

30,239,907 4,226,632 14.80 2,069

27,025,465 3,777,349 13.38 1,870

10 28,629,965 4,001,610 14.17 1,981

11 30,327,992 4,238,943 15.11 2,112

12 28,758,443 4,019,568 14.89 2,081

2023 30,188,735 4,219,479 15.79 2,207
29,326,866 4,099,016 15.50 2,166

28,704,401 4,012,014 15.74 2,200

28,941,735 4,045,186 16.05 2,243

28,212,947 3,943,324 15.48 2,164
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2023

0.360000 50.32

10 0.360000 50.32
11 0.360000 50.32
12 0.360000 50.32
13 0.360000 50.32
14 0.360000 50.32
15 0.360000 50.32
16 0.360000 50.32
17 0.360000 50.32
18 0.360000 50.32
2022 21 0.030000 4.19
20 0.030000 4.19

22 0.030000 4.19

20 0.030000 4.19

10 20 0.030000 4.19

11 21 0.030000 4.19

12 20 0.030000 4.19
2023 20 0.030000 4.19
21 0.030000 4.19

20 0.030000 4.19

20 0.030000 4.19

22 0.030000 4.19

2022 2023 2011 26

2023
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7.50
10 7.35
11 2.11
12 9.87
13 21.46
14 11.67
15 15.37
16 5.69
17 12.56
18 5.11

100x

(%)
ol EX BT 6.9
100 32 1.5 3.4 5.8 50
0.0
-10.0
-20.0 —-11.8 14.9
£ TRTH ) et e——t—at—rea—e————————————— et it bt A ettt ettt i et
O 201a% 2015% 2016% 2017% 2018% 2010% 0020% 2001% 2002% 2O023R
100x
2023
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9,345,340 9,345,340 2,873,020 2,873,020 8,358,846 8,358,846
10 4,507,746 4,497,942 4,290,140 4,290,140 8,576,452 8,566,648
11 1,631,128 1,619,324 4,058,498 4,046,693 6,149,082 6,139,279
12 795,955 795,955 2,630,108 2,630,108 4,314,929 4,305,125
13 5,045,339 3,482,507 6,004,810 4,503,825 3,355,458 3,283,806
14 476,623 476,623 968,734 897,083 2,863,347 2,863,347
15 184,128 184,128 470,798 470,798 2,576,677 2,576,677
16 234,516 234,516 622,111 622,111 2,189,082 2,189,082
17 573,389 573,389 382,270 382,270 2,380,201 2,380,201
18 41,704 41,704 510,121 510,121 1,911,784 1,911,784

13
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100 100 100
0.01 100
10 10

12

3.00
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L 2633

8.5

0.55
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(a

I

(c

¢

(e

(f

(9

(h

(a
(b

2010

174

12 02
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100
0.01

3.30 3.00

10

https://www.sc.mufg.jp/products/trust/index.html
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2633

0.01

10
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0.01

10
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31

(a

¢
30 3,000
30

30

30

146
30

reviseur d"entreprises

62/258



I

(c

¢

90

EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

180

90

180
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25

59
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131

2023 31
139.77

23 103

23
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2023 31

2023 31
90,989,063 12,717,541

5,082,296 710,353

2(a) 96,071,359 13,427,894
2(a) 2,751,031 384,512
2(a) 52,518 7,340
2(a) 3,144,000 439,437
2(a) 61,605 8,611
102,080,513 14,267,793

2(a) 3,744,419 523,357
2(a) 178,055 24,887
Z(g?;fés’ 83,486 11,669
4,005,960 559,913

98,074,553 13,707,880

48
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31

2022 31 2021 31

98,074,553 13,707,880

91,673,623 12,813,222 90,790,319 12,689,763

15.79 2,207
19.01 2,657

43 48

17.02 2,379 15.44 2,158
20.18 2,821 17.98 2,513
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2023 31
91,673,623 12,813,222

2(c) 1,888,171 263,910
1,888,171 263,910

2(c) 253 35
199,869 27,936

199,869 27,936

61,838 8,643

11,784 1,647

60,227 8,418

51,087 7,140

10 20,636 2,884
8,328 1,164

16,028 2,240

3,588 501

2(c) 14,302 1,999
647,809 90,544

1,240,362 173,365

2(a),2(b) 5,812,261 812,380
2(a),2(b) (3,272,893) (457,452)
2(d), 2(e) (1,248,561) (174,511)

1,290,807 180,416
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(4,839,469) (676,413)
(1,334,422) (186,512)

2(d),2(e) 626 87
(6,173,265) (862,837)

(3,642,096) (509,056)

2(h) 22,255,386 3,110,635
2(h) (10,410,635) (1,455,094)
11,844,751 1,655,541

11 (1,801,725) (251,827)
98,074,553 13,707,880
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2023 31
2,380,201 41,704 510,121 1,911,784
2,534,995 1,165,218 129,132 3,571,081

43

48
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2023 31
33,478  TELUS Corp 717,760 0.73
717,760 0.73
13,213  Novo Nordisk A/S "B* 1,803,761 1.84
1,803,761 1.84
9,010 AirLiquide SA 1,419,518 1.45
7,370  EssilorLuxottica SA 1,345,864 1.37
3,963 Kering SA 2,446,729 2.49
1,172  LVMH Moet Hennessy Louis Vuitton SE 1,016,198 1.04
29,168  Sanofi 2,844,904 2.90
12,344  Schneider Electric SE 1,976,932 2.02
11,050,145 11.27
2,821,100 Bank Rakyat Indonesia Persero Thk PT 861,951 0.88
861,951 0.88
8,596  Accenture Plc "A" 2,371,894 2.42
23,854  MedtronicPlc 1,974,396 2.01
4,346,290 4.43
43,200  KDDI Corp 1,351,071 1.38
1,351,071 1.38
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430,114 Wal-Mart de Mexico SAB de CV 1,728,940 1.76
1,728,940 1.76

410,329  Koninklijke KPN NV 1,405,583 1.43
1,405,583 1.43

278,915  EDP - Energias de Portugal SA 1,380,023 1.41
1,380,023 1.41

54,200 DBS Group Holdings Ltd 1,474,866 1.50
1,474,866 1.50

79,000 Industriade Diseno Textil SA 2,440,417 2.49
2,440,417 2.49

87,666 Epiroc AB "A" 1,705,133 1.74
1,705,133 1.74

3,480  Lonza Group AG Reg 1,952,149 1.99
3,907  Zurich Insurance Group AG 1,917,297 1.96
3,869,446 3.95

67,000 MediaTek Inc 1,602,198 1.63
155,000 Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Co Ltd 2,694,755 2.75
4,296,953 4.38

20,064 AstraZenecaPlc 2,613,347 2.67
40,249 DiageoPlc 1,735,255 1.77
13,668 Ferguson Plc 1,896,603 1.93
138,964  Prudential Plc 2,280,919 2.33
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40,421  Reckitt Benckiser Group Plc 2,867,938 2.92
64,370 RELXPlc 1,906,060 1.94
1,324,912  Taylor Wimpey Plc 1,896,415 1.93
15,196,537 15.49

16,777 AbbVie Inc 2,434,007 2.48
9,625 Assurant Inc 1,259,046 1.29
47,019  Baker Hughes Co 1,469,344 1.50
5,063 Chevron Corp 872,102 0.89
56,743  Citizens Financial Group Inc 2,400,796 2.45
3,768 Estee Lauder Cos Inc "A* 1,022,597 1.04
22,237 Intercontinental Exchange Inc 2,378,247 2.43
12,790 International Flavors & Fragrances Inc 1,435,294 1.46
5,984 IntuitInc 2,491,079 2.54
12,668  M&T Bank Corp 1,943,398 1.98
12,895 Microsoft Corp 3,149,604 3.21
25,388  Otis Worldwide Corp 2,062,267 2.10
17,370  Paychex Inc 1,993,381 2.03
24,257  Philip Morris International Inc 2,524,669 2.58
41,725  Synchrony Financial 1,503,769 1.53
16,680 TE Connectivity Ltd 2,110,354 2.15
10,502 United Parcel Service Inc "B*" 1,935,309 1.97
4,039 UnitedHealth Group Inc 2,012,068 2.05
8,270 Visalnc "A" 1,898,048 1.94
31,498 Williams Cos Inc 989,982 1.01
37,885,361 38.63

91,514,237 93.31

91,514,237 93.31
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81,721  TELUS Corp 1,752,079
1,752,079
1,752,079
1,752,079

.79
.79
.79
.79

Rl

BlackRock ICS US Dol lar Liquid Environmentally
Aware Fund

N

28,043 2,805,043 .86

2,805,043 .86
2,805,043 .86
96,071,359 97.96
2,003,194 2.04
98,074,553 100.00

N

N

2023 31

27.56
18.29
14.58
11.64
.98
.33
.40
.91
.86
.41
97.96

P N N W o1 ©

100.00

43 48
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14
25
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31

fonds commun de

2010 12 17 2010
2011
EU 2011/61
2013 12
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2023 31

18,842 0.01

@
@

@
Exe

90 15

EIS
=X

@
@

15
10
15

ENEEN
EX T

24

https://www.blackrock.com/cash/en-Im/client-reporting
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2023 31
2023 31
2023 30
2023 31
0.702750 0.708150
0.745990 0.749597
1.083776 1.083424

0.145864 0.146127
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1.085049 1.087050
1.231800 1.238100
0.000067 0.000067
0.007705 0.007672
0.053312 0.053268
0.095345 0.096429
0.760312 0.761644
0.033306 0.033212

(f

11 13 BlackRock Global Investment Series Combined
(g
2023 31
(h
(i
2023 31 107,890
(a

Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier
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(b
(c
(a
0.33 0.75
(b
0.1667 1.00
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2020 30

2022

0.025

1855
49 49, avenue J-F Kennedy, L-1855 Luxembourg

2023 31

2023 31

64,500

2019 17
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10

2010 taxe d"abonnement
0.05
2010 174
0.01
2023 31

11

12
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(1)
(i)
12
2023 31
40,000,000 2023 31
0.15
0.90
13
14
2023 31

65,297

743
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15

16
2023 31

17
2023 25
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2023 31
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Statement of Net Assets
as at 31 January 2023

o aba | Equity Insamn

Imime Stmbegies Super Money o | e corer
Portfoko Portialia Barket Fund Portiola

50 WED LED =D

Astgds

Eecaption portiolio al eogk 257 [T 553 | 776 48K 5T

Unraakeed approcationdepraaalion)

rithes portiolio at moarke valisg Fah] 215905 BT 1 TTE 485 55 18 B12 £00

1 gk Hal a2 isel 275 s
fram brokar is = = = 2
nieragt and diidandy recclvablo — & ¥ &Y £ 25T
Smenig xobd § 2 . 1 0 5 ) —
vl s sustrEcribied 2ay H 144 000 14 239

Inraakesd e racatic
Cpan Fonwand foregn sochangs inansmslons Hdy i e | —_ - Z,121 = =
Swaps 2 markel valag 1 B ) = T 1,198 — =
2Ny 355 e T#.153 61 505 EE T gy =Rk

Todal assals 3450 622 470 20,728,188 101080593 228271608 2.TASTEE TO4 16, 754 BED

Liabilities

Cash awied 16 bark

arrabie for urfunded loan
Payabla o Wvadiino 8 purchased 3 297

Payabie for F

FElE redaam ad

CbAdends et s

ko on

sl acdvangs hrarsedions T, 08T
Swapd a1 markel vaian & 47T
Aesrued spandas and olhad Rabdiios 500 TTR B3 486 418 879 2115 318 B TS

Tolal Hobilitios 1,038,566, 486 1,476 336 &,005 980 4445018 1,016,427 202 232163
Tolal ned pesels 2,424,036,004 9251840 RE0TASE  T20EIT.IDI 1 TERIE.IN2 16,503,726

1 b Disa o0 RMOTIed ool maiod Piekss teario nole 2(i)

Approved on bahalt of the Board

Data 25 May 2023

T rebars o paagee s &3 40 38 Forrn wn indeg ral part of Feee Bnarcal o asmants

Annual repord and audited financial stalemeants [11]
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Three Year Summary of Net Asset Values
as at 31 January 2023

Comenoy 3 Sy 22 H Jammiry 2021
Global Alocation Pertfalic
Tolal nel assels U 310,281,540 434771800 26821817
Bl 325l vl P
A Clats om0 Snboing sl LD 18.07 1maY 1248
A Clags non-diginboing und A0 AD 19.38 142 2045
A Class mon-dsinbitfmg und JFY S 118.2] 13244 12

Glabal Equity Inceme Penfalis
Tedal net assols UED 05.074.883 CAREER k] #0.700.31%
Bl el vl g bl

A Class disinkl LD} 1578 1702 548
F Class disd =D 1904 2018 L]
Incoma Strotegies Fortholia
Todad net ossots usn 220,827,203 270,583,400 261,564,877
Ml ansal valua per
A Class distributing il LD 507 S547 31
A Class distibuting unil SGD hedgad S60D 835 1014 1]
AD Class: digintuling urd (o) 865 B34 949
B Class di sinbiafing und s 506 SAT 555
& Clags dishribud ing unit LD 8 05 AT Bl e
J Class dish ributing wne ED 5 (H) = 38 553
Super Money Market Fund "
Tolal net assels uzo 1,780, 350,502 2270580504 2ATHARTANT
Ml appsl valiue par
Commen disiribuling ung usD 1 () 1 ) § 00
Current distritading und UED 100 104 100
Instiutional | diddébiding wni UED 1 1) 1.1} 100

Warld Inceme Portfalia
Todal net assote usn 16,552,128 2E, 75T 20,516,457
Mol el valug pol

A Class distnbuting und UED 1048 1118 155
A Chags diginbiding unil A0 AUD 8T ars VAT
A Class disinbating undl EUR ELR /.29 513 a8

O Sogeaet kol WMoY iyl gty P b0 PR v LIS 0 ] it 1 iy 2010 B COMESTIe] i Y b Probiies Dol it hiel & et Villsh ol It PR Placinsh il i
L

Tha Nodes o0 pagss £3 10 88 Torm &h integral part of T Bnanaal o elsmants

[12] BlackRock Glotal Invesiment Series
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Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets

for the year ended 31 January 2023

BlackR ook Glotal
Ieresiment

Torias Combined

Glotml &l pation
Partielio

Globml Equity
Imcoanh Portiolia

Wot naseds of the baginming of the yoar 3,102 364 582 434,771 429 1,673,623
I aither

Barik rforas! 19,944 564 pi =
Bl &nd loan Inbaresls 1 593241 - -
DA deride (ral of willbelding 12 Hel 2509 380 (NI R
Monagemant fos rebate 4 1 RS — —
CANar inem 26554 — -
Tolal Income 53087842 - 1885471
Expensos

Band: infaras! S 253
Harsgoment o 4 195 850
Cisisbution faas 4 EEEE ]
Actwinigtralion leas B &1 858
Audd leas T 18,784
Lagal T B0
Preting e of il Taarimg o SE0a7T
Taoas 14 2ETE
Coordm ation [eas 5 B0a

Dpoafary {abl

Translar agent foos ¢,

Loan SommEmand foog = o

Shac Rane g5 e el 6 is% e
el oxpors o bef ore redmburs semant 578079
4 o

Fabmbursament of sqeensas

Total axpo il b aftof roimbursamnt

LETEAT

Nt inwestment incomed{deficil)

{5,878,97%)

Piciisad galn on inveiimonts
Rleabsed (0ss) on Fiments
Mol Paliged galnilass) o

23, 245327
7

1 02, 148
[1 457 BS

Fubure condracia 2(dp 1] = =

Foragn currencias. and forwand foragn aochangs reneactions T2 e} 4 161 583) [ o 1) (2 4BEE )
Swap brardadiond 2k (8 ERT)

Optiors corfrads 3 i) - L.

Mot roalisod gaini{loss) far this yoar

1048029

775,20

1290307

Charsge i undsalised apprecialion of Inoaimaents

Chariga in unrealised (depradation) on Irasdm anls

Ml changs in unrgeased spprecatont dapnetalion) on
Foragn astences ard forwand fofegn i Do b
Swap transpdions

(45 BIEATS

bl m 5}

{18 2635823

(122481)

14 244

[3T.425, 110)

(430 298]

1,547

(4,639 455)
g 423y

B26

et change in unrealised appreciation(deprecision) for the year

{64,011, T42)

(43, 5548,47%)

(5,173,265

Increasei{Decreans) in mol assole s a rosall of sparations

(26,035.85)

(41,738,534

{3, 642,096}

Mevemants B unit capital

5 @ rasul of issug of urils 2R} 2T 004 442 23 255 0%
Ml paymants a5 8 nesul of repurchass of unis (b 13,553 47T, 125 L1410 eSS
I P b Dcroase) Im el assots o8 & resall of movements in unit capital (B9, 112.881) (73,781,358 11,544,751
Devidands doclared 11 {41, T8, XF3) o B T25)

Mot nsaods of the ond of T year

2,424,038, 004

140,254 840

98,074,553

T Ndas -0 pagess £3 10 48 Torm &6 integral part of T Bnanaal o elsmants
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Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets
for the year ended 31 January 2023 continued

Incoere Strabegies Super boney
Bkt Fund
ush
Nt asadds o the beginming of Bhe yoear ETREE.499 $AT0, 550, W ARTERIIT
Income
Blari; intoras 4332 16535 a2 -
Bored #0d loan Inbereals 14,748,851 16,849 550 =
Ceddends nal of wilbhedding 120 (5955 - SE1214
Manggement as rebate 1895 - 25
Ol Incoma g
Tedal bncame 14,628 807 35.812,800 5512314
Exponsos
Bl b et Heh [:1] - 3 oS
Mansgamoend faes i 14532680 ad STH
Castabidion Taas 4 1. 173058 122551
Adsankerall o fods B b 1] LEen
Audd leas T TR | 10703
Ll Tims. i . 40,00
Prirfing ard olhas raparing foss BE 3 = [ L
Taoes 10 1is 14 181 B8 15
Coords gion foas § G0z 460,158 4,729
Dapoafary {oos B il ndy I 2 i B
Transfer agent faas 2.at9 e 143 foe ]
Laan ssmmimant foad 12 603
Liscollanaoiss fooas Hal 14 367 ] BOA2T
Tolal expors os before redmb uns emsnt 3414572 10,125 55T 483 274
Ruedmbursamant of epanses 4 2,450 604 =
Todal expor oa aftor reimbursembnt A48T T.034,993 453274
Wt inwesbrent incomed{dalicil) 11,411,035 ATATT.AY T
Roalised gain on Invastmants Ha). b} 41 TadTa T B 13500583
Raaksed (58] On Imssiments il wie (11,748,811} (7 465 G154 361
Ml raalissd gaindlost) sh
Futures conirgats 2} {56] —_ —
Forgn cuvendaes ard forward foregn anchanes ransaetiong i), 2(e} 192,346 — (436 453)
Swap raniadiong 2d} {58 BEY) = =
Copliors conracts 2dh 471 — —
Nt roalisod gainiloss) fer tho year (T.493.20€) Fil (530,817
Changa in uncaaliced appreciation on ivssiments (3,208 TN} — (1565130
Charga in unrsaliced [dapradation) on nvasim ents (2 AT &) 12 P o
Mal chiangd in unmeaised apprecdationydepreciation) on
Forgdgn cunrendas arvd forward fordsgn dochanga bransactions Hd). 26} £ 18 8E) - -3 1E:}
Swap transed ons 204y 14 244 — ——
Nt change in unrgalised sppresiationideprocision] for thy your i13,136.582) = (46,16}
Inereis e Dot oass) M el assols 0% 6 rosull of oporations (9.224.053) ITATT.TIE (1,395,503}
Mo omontE bn unit capital
Ml rocalpls a8 & rdsul of (s of wils 2[R} 18 483 564 2 BB6, 108 028 199,111
M paymanls a5 a ramll of repurchass of unis 2ny {54 005 431] (E AT AN (o) T ERG 1)
I reat aDecroans) in mol asscte 59 & rosdll of movements in unit capital (36815870 (801,231,003) {7450, 408)
D donds doalinsd 11 {10, ek k) [2T 87T Ti8) (A E NS R T
Nt assodn ot tho ond of (B ydar 120827203 1760, 359,592 16,522,726

The Nolas on pages £3 10 48 form Bn ntegral part of Tem Bnanaal o Wiemans

[14] BilackRock Glebal Invesiment Sories

92/258



EDINETOOOO

O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)

Statement of Changes in Units Outstanding
for the year ended 31 January 2023
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Global Equity Income Portfolio

2023

Portfolio of Investments as at 31 Janua

Helding Das
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Global Equity Income Portfolio continued

Portfolio of Investments as at 31 January 2023
Sector Breakdown
as at 31 January 2023

e of Wok

Congumear, Cyches 11,64
Indigsirial 4.98
Communicalions £33
Ensrgy 340
Ba 281
Colladhg Invedirmant Schamss 2 0B
Ll {49
Covairtiag porticiio o markst wabis &7 4
ther Mol Assets 204
00,00

T rebars o paagee s &3 40 38 Forrn wn indeg ral part of Feee Bnarcal o asmants
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1. Organisation

BlackRock Global Investiment Senes (the "Fund’) is a fonds
commun de placement formed under Lthe ks of the Grand
Duchy of Luxembowg, The Fund s set up under Part Il of the
law of 17 December 2010 relating to undeiakings for colbective
investmenl as amended (the “Z2010 L aw”). The Fund qualiies as
an allernative imvestment fund (AR in acoordance with
Directve 2011/61/EL of the European Parllament and of the
Coundl of & June 2011 on Alternative Investment Fund
Managers (AIFMDT and the Luxemboug law of 12 July

2013 on alternabive imvestment fund managers as amended (the
2043 Law™)

The Management Company appointed BlackRock Assat
Management Iredand Limdled (the “AIFM7 a3 the allennative
investrmeant fund manager The AIFM will provide and procure
the: prowision of investment managemeam services, mduding
portbalio and risk management fundions, tor the Fund. The
AIFM is entitled to delegate s fundions. powers, discrelions.
duties and obligations, suljed o AIFMD requirements

As al 31 January 2023, the Fund offered units in five Portiolios,
Global Alocation Portiolio, Global Equity Incomme Por tolio,
Income Sirateqies Podifolio, Super Money Markel Fund and
World Ineome: Poitfolio (sach a Podtlalie” and oollectively the
Porlfolios”). Each Portickio has different invesiment objeclives
and inviests i different types of imwestments.

Each Porlfolio is a separale podl of assets and s representesd
by sepaiate units of each Portfolio which ae divided inlo unit
claszes as detalled on page 52,

The dasses of units have squivalent rights in the Portiolios bat
carry dilferent leatures and chaging sirudures, which are more
fulty diesaibed in the Fund's Prospecius.

Significant events during the year

+ Effective 14 March 2022, Tarek Mahmoud was appointed as a
Direscior of the Board of the Management Company.

= Effective 25 May 2022, Graham Bamping reskgned from the
Board of Direcdors of the Management Company.

* Effective 18 August 2022, Michael Renner was appointed a3 a
D escion of the Board of the Management Company.

= A new Prospectus was issued on 4 January 2023,

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Pelicles

The fmancial slatements have been prepared in accordance
with generally aocepled accounting principlas in Lusembourg
and with the legal and requlalony requiremsnts relating (o the
preparation of the finandal stalerments as prescribed by e
Lusembourg authorities for Lucembourg investment companies
and include the following significant accounting policies:

{a) Valuation of Irvestments amd Cther Assels

The Fund's mwestments and other assels are valued as follows:

Hon-Money Market Portfollos

= Tesm boans are nol listed on any securities exchange. In
delesmaning the Nel Assel Valua (MAVT). the Porticlio utilisés
the valuations of tesm loans furmished by a pricing senvice
approved by the AIFM. The pricing service typlcally values
Lefim koans at the bid pace when quolaticng aie readily
avallabde. Term loans for which quolalions are nod readily
avallable are valued at fair market value on a consistent basis
as delermined by the pricng service using pridng matnces to
determine valuations. The procedures of the pricing sernvices
and s evalualions are reviewed by the Investment Adviser of
{he relevant Poetfolio (ihe “Investment Adviser™) under the
general supsrvsion of the AIFM. The AFM has determined in
g Faith thal the use of a pridng senice is a fair method of
deden rmgning the valuation of lerm loans,

Porticlio secumities consisting of equilies. bonds and other
desbil ingtruments (other than shorl-Lenm obligations but
inchading histed mswes) may be vaued on the basis of prices
furnished by one or more picing services which detemine
prices for nosmal, instilutional-size trading unis of such
gecurilies using market information, ansactions for
comparable securities and vanous relalionships between
geciiiies thal aie generally iecoghised by nsulional
traders:

L

Portfolio secumities that ae listed on stook exchanges of
traded on other regulated markels are valued al the last
known prioe on such exchanges of markeds as of the dose of
the bustness day mmeadialely preceding the valuation dale
with the exceplion of Global Equity Inoeime Portfolio for which
sacuriles are valuad al the valuation dale al the lasl known
pice ag of 400 pon. Lucembourg time (P CET o1, in each
case, the "Refevant Tima™) If there are no such salesof a
pariicular securily. the value of such security will be the last
avallabie bid price of the Relevan! Time o, in certain
circumstances, such portfolie searties are valued & the kast
zale price on the exchange thal is the pimary market ko such
seclirities. of the last quoted bid price for thoge secinies feo
which the Over-the-Counter {TOTC™) market such as NASDACL
15 e primary il ket for bsted securilies;

= Imeestmeents in open-ended oollectve investment schemes are
valsed on the bagis of the last avallable nel assel vaue of the
units of such collective imvestiment schemsa;

Foed income securities thal are nol listed on slock exchanges
of traded on other regulated markels are valued al the kast
available bid price of yidd equivalents oblained from ene o
o dealers of pricing services. Securibes raded in the OTC
kel are valwed at the last availatde b price. In cases
whede seciiilies are aded on more than ohe exchandge, the
secunlies are vaiued on the ewxchange designated by of under
the direction of the AIFM as the primary market. Portfolio
securites that are raded both i the OTC markest and on a
siock exchange are valued acoording to the broadest and
most representative market |

Annual repord and audited financial stalements  [43]
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

= When marked quotations are not readily avadable or the AIFM
determines thal the independent market quolation does nol
reflect fair markel value, the AIFM will, in acooedance with
applicable laws, delermine a far markel value for that assel or
liablity. When determining the price for such an assel of
liakdlity. the AFM may use one or more of a varety of fair
valuation methodalogies (depending on lacors including e
assel type). The AIFM might. for example, price the asset
based on the orginal costof the invesiment of Il rmight use
proprielary or third-party models, meluding models that rely
upon died portiolio management pricing Inputs and which
refled the significance allnbuled 1o the vaious Faclors being
conald ered by the AIFM when il valies the aseed andior
liability, a5 well a5 certain assumplions. The AlFM might also
use prices of aclual, execited, hstonical trahsadions in the
assel andfor liabilily {or related or comparalde assels andior
liabilities) @ a basis for valualion or even uge, where
appropriale, an appralsal by a third parly experienced in the
valuation of similar assels and/or Babililies

As al 31 January 2023, the adjusied fair value applied lo cerlan
securnies is disdosed in the able below:

& ol Hed
Aasety

Qo

Currency

Falrvalue

Ircoimi Hralicues Podlolo LD T

Pleasa refer 1o the Portlolio of Investments section for further
delalls of the secumies

Super Money Market Fund

= The AFM has edablished procedwes designed o stabilize, o
the exlenl reasonably possible and in accordance with the
Money Markel Funds Regulalion (the "MMER"). the Super
Money Market Fund's price par unil as computed for the
purpose of subscrpllions and redemplions al USD 1 {the
“romstant NAY . NAY 15 rounded 1o the nearest por cenlages
pednt, of ils equivalent in currency lerms;

= The Portlolio's underlying secumrilies and money market
instruments are valued based upon ther amorlsed cost This
Inwolves valuimg an msrument al its cosl and theraal er
assuming a aonslant amorbisation o malunty of sy discoun
of premium, regardbess of the impaed of Nuctiating inlenesl
rabes on e marked value of the instruments. While this
miethod provides certammty in vabuaton, L may resull in peiods
durirgg which valse, as determined by amodtised cost, is
higher or lower than the price the Super Money Marke! Fumd
woulkd recene i L sold the instrurmsent,;

The: Pextlolio ks dassified as a shorl term Public Debl CNAY
MKMF and aompies with the requirerments under MMEFR. Az a
resull of this, the AIFM has introduced additional prodent and
rigorous liquidity manadgement procedures (o ensure
comphiance wilh any liquididy thresholds applicalbie to the
Fortiohio,

[44]  BlackRock Glebal Invesiment Series

= To assess whether the assels of the Portfolio ane suffickently
liquid to med reasonably foreseeable redermplions and not
fowce assels from being kquidated al discounted prices, the
volalilily of The Portlolio’s assels s requently monitored . The
AIFM may also apply one on more of Lhe following messures

irrrersing bquidity fees on redemplions that adegquately
tefled the cosl Lo the Portolio of achieving Bquedity and
enswre lhal the uitholders who remain in the relevanl
Poritolio are not unlarly disadvantaged when olher unil
holders redeem thelr units duing the period.

i, within & peeriod of 90 days, the lotal duration of
spspensons exceeds 15 days, the Super Money Markel
Fund shall automatically cease b be & short-lerm Public
Detst CHAY MMF and the AIFM shall inform unithaldsers of
s facl.

alter the Board of Dwedcors of the Management Company
of the Porlfolio has determined its aourse of action with
regard to above apoints, it shall promply provide detalls of
its decision to the compelent authority of the Porifolio;

irrpemsing redemmplion gates that lims the smount of units o
e redeemed on any one working day e a mesdimm of
108 of the units of the Fostlolio for any period up 1o

15 working days;

= irrpesing a suspension of redemplions lor any penod of up
1o 15 working days, of

= daking no immediate acion other ihan fulflling the obligaton
laid down i Article 24 {2} of the MMFR

The Por tfolio caloulates a shadow NAY whereby umder bying
gecurities and money makel instiuments are valued based
U0 @ ol B-lo-marked peice. In compliance with MMFR
resquirements, the diffesence between the conglant MAY per
unit and the NAY per unil caloulated wsing mank-to-rmarked 15
rmemiored and published daily on the websile of the

MMF: htps: hwww Mackiock comdcashien-imfclient -reporting

All Portfollos
= Cash s valued 3l its nominad amont;

* Repurchase agreements and reverse repurchase agreamenis
are valued al cost plus accieed interest. Recevable and
payatde balances melated o sepurchase agresments and
reswerse repurchase agreements are induded in the Stalerment
of Net Assels respedively under the captions "Recetvable for
imvestmems sold” and Payable for investments purchased”
The accrued interest from reverse repurchase agresments is
inchaded in the Statement of Met Assels under the caplion
“Interest and dividends recervable™

¥

Licquid assels such as money malkel msiuments are valued
of @ ame lised cosl basis:

Azsets which indude, in particular, interest and dvidends
recedvable, receivable for investiments sold and recetvable for
Fumad units subsoribesd are valued atb nomanal value;

Liatilities which indude, in particula, payable for ilvvestiments
purchased. payable for Fund unils redeemed, interest and
dividends payalle are valued at nominal value
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

(b) Realised gains and losses on Investments

Realised gains and losses on sales of mvestiments have been
delarmined on the basis of the average cost mathod

{2} Incoimed Expense from Investments

The Fund takes credit for incomes from its imdestments on the
Talkowing biasis:

interest ncome ks accied dally and includes the amorlisalion
on a straght-Ene basis of preamumes and accredion of
disentints

bank interesl 15 recogmsed on an accuals basls and indudes
Interasl iIncome from revarsa rapurchaks aoreaments,

dividend incone: 13 accued on the acdividend date and is
shown net of withholding L.

incoane from reverse repurchase ransactons is induded in
{he Statement of Operations under the caplion “Bank
Inlerest”;

= an imerest rate differential (CIRD) is the difference in inberest
rales bedween lwo similar interest beaning securities which
arises from the carrency hedging process eq. if the 1 month
interest rate on LSD s 0. 25% and on AUD L is 1%, then the
irnplied IRD s 0 75% Traders in the foretgn aechange market
use IRD's when pricing lonward exchange rates. IRDs can be
postive, ml or negative. Inclusion of IRDYs in deidends may
conshitube a payment from capilal in some junsdicdions. IR0 s
recorded as miscellaneous fees in the Statement of
Operations and Chaniges in Nel Assels

{d} Finanaal Detvative Instmenls

Duuming the year, thie Fund has entered into a numbser of lorward
foregn exchange ansacions amnd lulures conlracts. Open
futures contracts are valued al the fair marked value to close the
comracis on the accounting date. Surpluses/deficils ansing from
these and closed unsettled conlracts are taken Lo unrealised
appreciation/{depredation) and e indhuded under assels of
liabiliibes {as appropiate) in the Statement of Net Assets. The
el change in wnrealised appeedalion of depreciation and the
ned realised gains of bosses on seltlement or closing
tramsactions of forwand foreign exchange ransactions and
futures contracts are presented in the Statement of Operalions
and Changes in Nel Assels,

Duming the vear, the Fund has entered into swap ansadions 1o
escchamoge the relurn generated by one mstrument lor the relurn
generated by ancther investment. The Fund can wrile cred
defaull swaps ((CDSY) and purchase COS. When the Fund
wiiltes andior purchases a COS, a series of premiums is paid o
of paid by the Fund, in return for a payment contingent on a
caesfil evenl {predefinesd i the agreement). The premiums ae
inchuded in the cost of COS. Whete possible. swaps are marked
ior manket based upon dally prices obiained from thied party
pricang agents and vernlied againg the acdual make makes
Where such quolalions are nol available swaps are priced
based upon daily quotations from the markel maker, In both
cases changes in quolations are recorded as nel change in
unrealised apprecation of depredation in the Stalement of
Crperations and Changes in Net Assets. Nel realised gains o

hogsas on mality of lerminaton of the swaps and the inlenest
earned in relation o the swaps are presented in the Stalement
of Operalions and Changes in Nel Assels

Each Portfolic may sell call options and purchase putl oplions on
stack ndices 1o seck 1o hedge portfalio securilies agalnst the
impad of antcipated general pice declines in equity makets of
spicilic industry sedors thereol. Options on indices are simila
1o oplions on securitkes excepl thal on exercse of asskniment,
the parties lo the condrad pay or receive an amounl of cash
equal o the difference babween the dosing value of the index
and the exercise price of the oplion tmes a specied mulliple
The elfectiveness of a hedge amploying stock index oplions will
depend pirmsnily on the degree of cormelation belween
rievements i the vabue of the index undeslying the option and
in the perticn of the porfolio being hedged . Amcag olher
factors, the degree of correlation with resped 1o conver il e
seailies will be alfected by the degrea lo which the markel
value of porilolio securities is altribulable to thelr conversion
value The nel change in unreslised apprecialion of depreciation
and the nel realised gains or losses on expaation o closing
ransadions of oplions are presenled in the Stalement of
Operalions and Changes in Ned Assels

(&) Foreign Exchange

The costof investments in carrencies other than the currency of
denomination of the respadive Portlolio has been translated al
the rates of exchange ruling at the time of purchase. Market
value of invesiments and other assets in currencies other than
the: cumrency ol denomination of the respeciive Porticho have
been translaled & the exchange rate prevalling  the Porticlios
valuation polint In Liseembourg a2 at 31 Jahuany 2023 The el
change in unrealised apgpredalion of depreciation and the net
realised gains o losses on disposal of selllement of other
assels of labilides in currencies other than the curency of
denomination of the respedive Portiolio are presented in the
Statement of Operations and Changes in Nel Assels

Inoome and expenses in cumencies olher than the currency of
dencmination of the respedive Portfolio have been translated al
the rates of exchange prevaling on Wansacion date

Differant exchange rates are resulling from the pricing mal rix
and different valuation points between the diffesent Portfolios. In
the below Lable, the 4PM CET exchange rates on 31 January
2023 are presented bor Global Allocation Portiolio, Global Equity
Income Porticlio and World Income Portfolio, the 5PM CET
exchange rales on 30 January 2023 are presented for Inoome
Sirategles Portlolio and Super Money Market Fund

The following exchane rales were used to ranstate the
investiments and olher assels and olher liabdlities for all
Pestiolios denomimated n cumences other than the base
currency of the respedive Portfolio as al 31 Janeary 2003

']?[IBE{'

CAD 0745000 07 e
CHF | O3 il e
DEK 0, 154 ez
EUR | (55083 | RS0
GBP 1 234500 1 23400
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued
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{f} Combined Financial Stalemenis

The: Combinid Finanoal Staterments of the Fund are expressed
in VS0 and nclude the wotal of the lmandal statements of the
different Por tfolios.

(i) Deferred Organisational Expenses

Deferred oganisalional expenses are capitalised and are

Al lisizd o @ straighi-line bagis over a fivie year paiod. As al
3 January 2023, all Portfolos had lully amortised their deferred
organisational expenses

{h) Income Equalisation

Each Portfolio follows the acoounting pradics of equalisation (o
presvent the undistributed income per unit from fluciuating solely
by resason of subscniptions and redemplions of H3 umts. This s
accomplished by mamntaining an equalisation account for the
relevant Portfolio. The equalisation account is caredited with that
periion of the proceeds of subscaibed units representing the net
undistributed moome per unit of those unils, and is deb@led with
thad portion of any redemplion paymenl representing nel
undistributed imoome per unit of the redecmed units. A portion
of the dividends dedared by a Portfolio ray consial of amodints
previously credied o the equalisation account. The yield
resported o ivestons will incdude amounts paid from nel inoonme
as well as any amount paid from the equalisation accounl

The Inoosme E qualization is nduded in the Movements i unil
capital in the Statement of Operations and Changes in Net
Assels

(i} Unhunded loans represent the remaining obligation of the
Portfolio to the bomrower

As al 31 January 2023, the Income Sirategies Portfohio had an
unfunded loan of USD 107 800 disclosed under Payabde bor
unfunded loan” in the Statement of Nel Assels

3. Management Company and Investment Advisers
{a) Managemen] Compamy

BlackRock Fund Management Company S A is the
Mamagement Company of the Fund. Pursuant to the
Management Regulations, the Management Company has
agreed to manage the Fund's Portfolios for the exdusive
account of the relevant Unitholders. The Depositary and such
olher agents as appropnate. nduding Destributors of the Fund’s
Unils in and oulside Japan are appointed by the Managemeant
Company. The Managemenl Company has deegated the
appointment of Distribanors (o the Principal Distibator

[48]  BlackRock Glebal Invesiment Sories

BlackRook Fumnd Managemen! Company S48 |5 awholly ownied
subrsidiary within the BlackRock Group and is regulated by the
Commigsion de Surveiliance du Secleur Financiar ("CS5F")

(b) AIFM

Their Managemen! Company has appointed BiackRock Assel
Management lredand Lirited a3 the aftermative investment fund
manager o provide and proame the provision of mvestment
ranagenenl services, induding porticlio and rsk management
furcibons, kor the Fund within ihe meaning of the AIFMD. The
AIFM is entitled 1o defegale s fundions. powers, discretions.
duilles and obligations, subjed to AIFMD requirements.

Theee AIFM iz a wholly owned subsidiary within the BlackRock
Group and |5 authorised by the Cantral Bank of Ireland

The AIFM is pald out of the management fee due to the
Managemsent Company, & outlingd in Notle 4

(c} Investment Advisers

Subject ko the overall responsibility of the AIFM, each of the
Poetiolios receives investment advisory senvices rom the
Investment Advisers

(ol Allacaton Podloko ElackReck Japan Co, Lid

Fobil Equity ncoma Podtlolo BlackRack Inves! men Mamagemend LK) Linsed
rome Sirbeges Porfolo BlachRock Franaad Manegemnd, Ing

Supit Morky Matosl Fus BlachRack Franial Mamsgemend, Ing

World Incomi Portl ol BlackAock Japan Co Lid

The Inverstment Advisers form pant of the BlackRock Group

The Invvestment Advisers are each patd oul of the management
fee due o the Management Company, as outlined in Note 4

4. Management and Distribution Fees
{a) Managemen fees

Duineg th wesie, thee Fund pald managerment fees (o the
Managemenl Company

The leved of management fee varies from 0.33% to 0.75% per
annum of the NAY with the exceplion of Class F units, whach do
nod pagy @ manadement fee bul raiher alee to the [nvestmen
Adviser or alliliales under a separale agreament, The level of
managenvent fee vakes aoconding o which Portfolio and unil
class the ivestor buys. These lees acoaue dally, are based on
the: MAY of the relevant Portiolio and are paid monthly, The
Fund's AlFM and Investiment Adviser fees ae bome by the
Managemsent Company and paid through the managemen fee.

(b Distribution fees

The: Managemen! Company has also entered inko 3 Distribution
Agreement with ElackRock Invesiment Management

(UK Limdted {the Principal Dystributor). The Pancpal
Distribastor may condude contraciual arrangements with canain
Distribasors for the disinbution of unils outside the US. such as
the: lapanese Distribulors (@ disdosed on pages 3 o 4)

Thex lesveed of distribastion fes varies from O 1667 % to 1 0% per
annum, of the NAV with the exceplion of Classes AD units, D
units, F units, Instiluticnal | units, which do nol pay a distnbution
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

feree. Thie leved of distribution fee varies acoording Lo which
Pestfolio and unit dass the investor buys. These fees acaue
dally, e based on the NAY of the rdevani Portlolio and are

pald quarllery

The management and distilulion lees per unil dass lor each
Pratlolio are disclosed in detail in the Fund’s Prospecius

Since 30 Apal 2020, thera had been a e walver on
management lees, distnbution fees in place lor the Supar
Moniey Marked Fund's Common, Current and Insiflutionsl | units
The lese watvers have been stopped on managemoent and
distribution fees on 5 May 2022

5. Coordination Fees

The Management Company has entered inlo an agresment with
BlackRock Operations (Luxembourg) S .4 ol (BROLY) pursuant
o which BROL . under the divection of the Board of Directors of
the: Management Compaiy. provides cerlaln corporale and
adrmimsirative coordination sevices on behall of the Fund

Thee coordination fee rate is 0.025% of the average daly NAV of
the: Fund (excluding Class F units), per annum

6. Administration Fees

The Management Company has appointed State Strest Bank
International GmbH, Lucemboung Branch, 49 avenue J-F
Kennedy, L-1855 Luxembourg, as the Fund's Adminisirative
Agent in Luxemboung 1o assisl the Managemen! Company al its
principal office in Luxembowrg with general adminisiratve lasks
pursuzant o the Administration Agreement, against changing
usual loes lor thess seivices.

7. Audit Fees
Detailed bebow are the fees patd to Dedoatte Audit 5.3 ol for the
vear ended 31 January 2023

Auil and sudd relabed senaces faxiding VAT)
Mor-audd senaces -

& Depositary Fees

The Managament Company has entered inlo the Depositary
Agreerment with ihe Dapositary, Stale Streel Bank International
GrrbH. Luxembourg Branch. This agreement was amended
effedive 17 January 2019 in ine with the appoiniment of the
AlFM

The Depositary Agreemeant provides that sl securities and cash
of the Fund, other than cash held in rading acoounts or held in
any operaling accounts lor expenses of dividend disbursement
acoounts {which may be mantained al olher banks), are to ba
held by or to the ordes of the Depositary provided that the
Management Company may place cash in overnight call
acoounts of on Llerm deposl with other banks approved by the
Depositary, who shall continue 1o supervise such funds. The
Depositary is responsible lor the colledion of principal and
incowme on, and the payment for and collection of procesds of
secunilies bought and sold for the Fund. Inline with the
compliance of the AIFM and the Fund's compliance with AlFMD.
the Deposilary's role pursuant 1o AIFMD enhances Unitholder
protedion and ncludes the responsibilily 10 salekeep the assels
of the Fund and hold in custody all imanaal mstruments, cash
and other assels of the Fund {the “Safekeeping Fundtion™)

Thex Depositary charges the Fund lees bor these serices in
accordance with s usual rates expressed as a fracdion of a
percentage per annum of the nel assels of the Fund. The
Dieposiizry may appoind one of more cosrespondent banks, and
it is expected thal the Depositary relains a correspondent bank
in the United States, whose lees shall be borne by the Fund. As
part of its Salekeeping fundion, the Deposfary 1s latde o the
Fumd for the loss of linandal instruments which are held o

custody

9. Transactions with Related Parties

The ultimete holding company of the Management Comipany,
the Principad Distributor, the AIFM, the vestment Manages and
the: Investment Advizers is BlackRock, Inc., a company
incorporated in Dedaware, USA,

Dumingg the year there have been no significant ransactions
which were outside the ordinary course of business or which
ware nol on normal aormemencial e s,

10. Taxes

Under present Luxembourg law and practice, the Fund s not
Il b0 amy Lusesnboung of dieary incom: of capllal galng ax,
now are dividends pald by the Fund subject o any Luxembourg
withheolding tax. However the Fund is subjsct 1o a subseriplion
tas { Taoce o abonnement) of 0.06% per annum kevied on the
MNAY of sach Portholio sl the lasl day of each cdendae quarter,
in acoordanoe with the 200 0 Law, excepl in resped of Super
Meney Marked Fund as well a3 in respecd of the Pertfolios o
unit classes reserved for instilutional imeestons within the
rmeaning of Artiche 174 of the 2010 Law, on which a reduced tae
of 0.01% per annum s kevied

For ihe year ended 31 January 2023, Global Allocation Portlolio
has ol paid Lusembourg faxes, as no subsoaiption G is pad
on ihe assels held by ihe Porlfolio in other underalangs for
collective Investment already subject to thal lax in Luxemboung.

Unider applicable forekgn tax ks, withholding taes may be
imposed on inlerest, dvdends and capital gams al vaious
rales,

11. Dividends

Super Money Market Fund

The net income {i.e., accrued interest income net of accrued
expienses) s dedared @ a dvidend on each valuation date on
all units oulsianding on thal day 1o the Unitholders of recosd
irmmvediabely poor 1o the daily determination of NAY per unil,
prevaded abaays that units shall be entitled to a dividend only
frean the: day on which their subscription is settled prios 1o 12PM
Luxembourg tirne and thal units redeemed shall nol be entilled
by rezcedve (e dally dhvadend dedared on the setifement day of
thesr redemplion

Hon-Money Market Partfollos

Thez net income of the relevant other Portfolios consists of

{1 nterest socmied, discoum eamed (nduding both ariginal
isgue and mearked discount) o other income eamed, (i) less the
edimated expenses of the Portfolio (incuding management
fees). In resped of each dividend declared, the Board of
Direscdews ol the Managermsenl Company ey determine if, and
by whal extent, such dividend is 1o be paid out of undistributed
nel ivestrment noonee, réalised and unrealised capital gains.
respedialy ncreased or decreased by nel equalisalion aaedils
or debals

Annual report and audited financial statoments  [47]
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

12. Credit Facllity

As al 31 January 2023, Income Strategles Portfolio was entitled
1o & credit Facility of LSD 40 000000 from Statle Streel Bank
and Trust Company. No portion of the aedil Facility was used
during the year ended 31 January 2023

A loan commitmen fee s charged on a daily basts i relation 1o
this credit Faality which 1s induded in the Siatament of
Operations and Changes in Ned Assets. The loan cormilment
fee consists of 015% chamged on the unusad portion of the
creadil factiny and the Federal Funds Effedive Rate of the
Uverndghd Bank Funding Rate (depending on which is aghe) +
0 90% margn spread on the used portion of the aedil Facilily

The comirrdtmend fee s disclosed in the Staterment of
Crperations under the caplion Loan commilment fees”

11, Financlal Derlvative Instruments and Efficlent Portfolio
Management Techniques

Each of the Portbolios may use derivalives 1o hedge marks and
currency nsk, and for the purposes of efficient portfolio

T e et

The use of derivalives may expose the Forifolios to a higher
degres of nsk. In particular. demvative conlracds can be highly
wolatile, and the amownt of nitial margin is generally small
reslaive 1o the size ol the contrad so thal transadions e
geared. Arelatively small imarkel movement may have a
petentially larger impad on desivatives than on standard bonds
o equilles,

Prlesase reler to the Portlolio of Investments section bor more
delalls

14, Transaction costs

In order o achieve 118 Invesimenl objecive, a Portiolo will inour
transacions costs in refation to rading acdivity on its Portolio of
Imveestments. Disclosed in the table below are separately
identfiable iransacion costs incurred by each Portfolio for the
yvear endad 31 January 2023, Thaese include commission cosis,
sefllement fees and broker fees.

[48]  BlackRock Glebal Invesiment Series

Trammction st

Gobel Allscation Porloko Ush —
(Sobe Equily incoms Poetl ol usn BR20
irzome Sirafeges Porfolo ush Ta
Supeer Moray bkl Fund LWED -
World Income Porlobo UED —

Mol 3 transaction cosls ae separalaly ientifiable. For CFDs,
swaps. forward foreign exchange transactions. lutures conlracls,
opions, syaptions and TBAs, ransacion costs are ncluded in
the purchase and sales price of the vestment. Whilst nol
separately idenlifiable these ransaction cosls are caplured
within the peformance of each Porifolio. Markel impad cosis
are nod separately ientifiabde and are therefore also nol
disclosed in the abowe table

15. Amounts due fromits broker

The Porliolios rade derrvalives with a range of coumerparties
The counderparlies o forward forelgn exchange ramsacions
and swap confracls are shown in the Portfolio of Investments

Cash oollaleral is paid o recerved on swaps 1o coves any
exposure by the counterpany 1o the Fund or by the Fund 10 the
counterparty

Dure fromlo Broker on the Slalement ol Mal Assels consists of
cash collateral and margin pakdirecened from the Fund's
clearng rokers and varndus counterparties.

16. Subsequent events

There have been no events subsequent o the Ainandal year
end, and up lo the dale of the approval of the inandal
statement s, which in the opinion of the Board of Diredors ol the
Management Company may have had a matena impad on the
financial statements for the inandal year ended 31 Jamnuary
2023

17, Approval date

The nancial slatements were approved by the Board of
Diredors of the Managermsnl Company on 25 May 2023
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Appendix | — Unit Classes (Unaudited)

Unit Classes In Issue Cammon Units

As at 31 January 2023, the Fund offers the following unit Common diztrbutng il in US0
poteke
Currant dsinbuting unitin USD

Imstituthomal | Uinits'

natiudonal | celribubng unil in 3D

Lia3a e it kng 13

Ryt o prabsbdion af bree SR

Unit Classes Launched
Tteer e were no unil classes launched during the year

Unit Classes Closed
There were no unil classes dosed dunng the year

[&2] BlackRock Global Invesiment Sarias
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45

2022 31
2022 31

80,420,219 11,240,334

11,256,187 1,573,277

2(a) 91,676,406 12,813,611

2(a) 26,659 3,726

2(a) 55,573 7,767

2(a) 96,806 13,531

91,855,444 12,838,635

2(a),4,5,

6.7.8 181,821 25,413

181,821 25,413

91,673,623 12,813,222

50
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31

2021 31 2020 31

91,673,623 12,813,222

90,790,319 12,689,763 100,733,419 14,079,510

17.02 2,379
20.18 2,821

45 50

15.44 2,158 14.95 2,090
17.98 2,513 17.21 2,405
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2022 31
90,790,319 12,689,763

2(c) 1,822,770 254,769
1,822,770 254,769

2(c) 89 12
235,217 32,876

235,217 32,876

63,671 8,899

13,004 1,818

30,714 4,293

63,534 8,880

10 31,869 4,454
9,801 1,370

15,272 2,135

5,767 806

2(c) 30,651 4,284
734,806 102,704

1,087,964 152,065

2(a),2(b) 13,276,914 1,855,714
2(a),2(b) (2,702,942) (377,790)
2(d),2(e) 490,083 68,499

11,064,055 1,546,423
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912,691 127,567

(948,421) (132,561)

2(d),2(e) (437) (61)
(36,167) (5,055)

12,115,852 1,693,433

2(h) 13,822,181 1,931,926
2(h) (23,256,261) (3,250,528)
(9,434,080) (1,318,601)

11 (1,798,468) (251,372)
91,673,623 12,813,222
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2022 31
2,189,082 573,389 382,270 2,380,201
3,168,564 202,553 836,122 2,534,995

45 50
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31

fonds commun de

2010 12 17 2010
2011
EU 2011/61
2013 12
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2022 31

16,644 0.00

@
@

@
Exe

90 15

EIS
=X

@
@

15
10
15

ENEEN
EX T

24 ()

(www.blackrock.com)

110/258



¢

(c

«

0.75

EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

0.25

111/258



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2022 31
2022 31
2022 28
2022 31
0.706650 0.699450
0.783607 0.782932
1.074402 1.075095

0.150336 0.150005
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1.118800 1.116550
1.342799 1.341400
0.128254 0.128310
0.000070 0.000070
0.008665 0.008682
0.048249 0.047879
0.739044 0.737572
0.035953 0.035953

(f

11 13 BlackRock Global Investment Series Combined
(9
2022 31
(h
(i
2022 31 120,812
(a

Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier
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(b
(c
(a
0.33 0.75
(b
0.1667 1.00
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2020 30

0.025

1855
49 49, avenue J-F Kennedy, L-1855 Luxembourg

2022 31

2022 31

61,000

2019 17
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2010 taxe d"abonnement
0.05
2010 174
0.01 2022 31

12
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(1)
(i)
12
2022 31
40,000,000 2022 31
0.15
0.90
13
14
2022 31

127,623

1,776

15
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16
2022 31

2022 14
2022 31

17
2022 25
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2022 31
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Statement of Net Assets
as at 31 January 2022

Bheifad

Workd Ingccere
i e

usd

Assels
Setuwitios porliohs ol oot A0INSD000 M2 TTA RN Bl AN NG XS5E08 227 7RSS 056 27806 472
Unroalsed approciationidepcaciation 61,572 095 74,704,050 156187 [23,155407 - 1.8 75
Sacartis portfohie @l Ml vilie 2@ 300G NT88 AT ABDIE0 D1676,406  Z71,.008.000 2271785056 26,963,347
Cash ol bunk 2[ap 22,473 588 237 26,650 G B35.A08 12571 454 —
sy Boe Rkt s 74518 — — 74,618 - —
Evinresd and dwvidonds endanalio a1 2,804 Bl — 55573 2. THE 185 e e AT 309
Aot kb Torinvwesbhants sold 2 758,311,086 BE3,96T - 1,898,519 755, B89 000 —
PCehcabin Ins Fund unils sulisctibad 20y LIS 05T 2837 0,808 930,06 2 200
Ui asd S Flon on

Opan Torwaud foooign exchange ansaclions 2[dp 648 RhG — -- ] - -
Dwapes al imasel vaua &3 406 [ il
Tolsl asseds 3,883 H3 502 438,095,421 90,855, 484 2HT B0 ERA 3040245 347 26,212,958
Liglnhties
Cash owid Lo bane 2[ap LA ] 1,402,338 — — = E R
Dlese b ckand 15 alatis] mMor
Fayabes by gnfandod pan 2y RoeR — e - -
Fapble i rvostmonts puschased 20y TG 1,630 — 6,880,150 PERISE0H 2205
Payabie b Fund unds redoomaed 2ap BT 778 TAD 547 - 195,656 = -
Deadomds papablo ) G, TBE — _ - 109, TBS -
Unroalsed doprocation on

Opon karwand forosgn exchangae bansactons Hdp 178 —_ — 1124 - —
Swaps al masat valoo () 2625 — — 20625 - -
Aconsd eaporos. ani olfwer Rabdfes 2iai4, 56,18 3,500 305 1,187,182 181,82 B0 1M 100 516 117347
Total Nabdilios TE1.628.620 3,323,692 181,821 8,026,715 TESGCE, 793 427618

_ Tolel ned ssswls N G I6AEED 434 TTLHZY M6FNET  ITH B4R 2270 580,584 1518517

M yptoation based o anrberd ool method. Pome st b ofe 2a)

Approved an bahaell of the Board of Directers of the Management Company

Dirpctor n'n'n;h
Choil Readchithe Leon Schwab
Duate 25 May 2022 Dt 25 May 2022

st NSRS o GRS A% 10 06 08 BN WO [k OF I TR  EAHTHETES.

Annual ropad and audiled lnancial slalemonts 11
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Three Year Summary of Net Asset Values
as at 31 January 2022

Comenoy £ 3 Jarary 2021 H Jammary 220
Global Alocation Pertfalic
Tolal nel assels U 434,771,829 32681817 268,402,318
Ml a5l valud ol
A Class non-d sinteding Lt LD 19.57 1946 1620
A Clags non-diginboing und A0 AD .42 21 46 1837
A Class mon-dsinbitfmg und JFY S 132 45 L oeled| 11081

Glabal Equity Inceme Penfalis
Tedal net assols UED 01,673,623 90,10 100,733,419
Bl el vl g bl

A Class disinbd UED 1702 15,44 1485
F Ciags digd LUED 20.18 17 48 1T
Incoma Strotegies Fortholia
Todal net sesots ugn 279,553,409 284554877 319,000,892
Ml ansal valua per
A Class distributing il LD 54T 556 555
A Class distibuting unil SGD hedgad S60D 1014 1035 [k ]
AD Class: digintuling urd (o) 2.4 243 348
B Class di sinbiafing und =D S47 S 5h 555
& Clags dishribud ing unit 155 x] aTs 10 0# {[+Tsk]
J Class disl rbuting Ll WD 538 S5 ]
Super Money Market Fund "
Tolal net assels uzo 2270, 580,504 2,476 BET 40T 2385874401
Ml appsl valiue par
Commen disiribuling ung usD 1 () 1 ) § 00
Current distritading und UED 100 104 100
Instiutional | diddébiding wni UED 1 1) 1.1} 100

Warld Inceme Portfalia
Todal net assote usn 2ETESIIT 29,518,487 26471301
Mol el valug pol

A Class distnbuting und USD 11% 156 T
A Chags diginbiding unil A0 AU 4.7 10AT Vi 4
A Class i ginbuting unll ELUR ELR il 9ER 340

O Sogeaet kol WMoY iyl gty P b0 PR v LIS 0 ] it 1 iy 2010 B COMESTIe] i Y b Probiies Dol it hiel & et Villsh ol It PR Placinsh il i
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Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets

for the year ended 31 January 2022
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Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets
for the year ended 31 January 2022 continued
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Statement of Changes in Units Outstanding
for the year ended 31 January 2022
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1. Organisation

BlackRock Global Investiment Senes (the "Fund’) is a fonds
commun de placement formed under Lthe ks of the Grand
Duchy of Luxembowg, The Fund s set up under Part Il of the
law of 17 December 2010 relating to undeiakings for colbective
investmenl as amended (the “Z2010 L aw”). The Fund qualiies as
an allernative imvestment fund (AR in acoordance with
Directve 2011/61/EL of the European Parllament and of the
Coundl of & June 2011 on Alternative Investment Fund
Managers (AIFMDT and the Luxemboug law of 12 July

2013 on alternabive imvestment fund managers as amended (the
2043 Law™)

The Management Company appointed BlackRock Assat
Management Iredand Limdled (the “AIFM7 a3 the allennative
investrmeant fund manager The AIFM will provide and procure
the: prowision of investment managemeam services, mduding
portbalio and risk management fundions, tor the Fund. The
AIFM is entitled to delegate s fundions. powers, discrelions.
duties and obligations, suljed o AIFMD requirements

As al 31 January 2022, 1the Fund offered units in five Portiolios,
Global Alocation Portiolio, Global Equity Income Por tolio,
Income Sirateqies Podifolio, Super Money Markel Fund and
World Ineome: Poitfolio (sach a Podtlalie” and oollectively the
Porlfolios”). Each Portickio has different invesiment objeclives
and inviests i different types of imwestments.

Each Porlfolio ts a separale pool of assels and s represented
by separade units of each Portfolio which are divided into unit
classes a5 detalled on page 54

The dasses of units have equivalent rights in the Portfiolios. bt
carry different fealures and charging strudures, which are more
fully descaibed in the Fund's Prospecius.

Significant events during the year
= Anew Prospectus was issued on 10 March 2001

= EMectiva 1 Apnl 2021, Svetlana Bulvina and Leon Josephine
Schab were appotiled as Diredors of the Board of the
Managemen! Compay

= Effective 23 Seplember 2021, Graham Bamping resigned as
Charman of the Board of ihe Managemenl Company

= Elective 23 Seplember 2021, Jonathan Grillin was appotnted
as Chatrman of the Board of the Managemen! Company

¥

Effective 23 Seplember 2021, Adnan Lawrence resigned as
Director of the Board of the Management Company

Effective 23 September 2021, Richard Gardner was appointed
as Derector of the Board of the Management Company,

= A new Prospectus was issued on 1 January 2022

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policles

The inancial statements have been prepared in acoordanoe
with generally sccepled accounting panciples in Lussmbourg
and with the legal and regulatorny requirements relating to the
preparation of the finandal stalements as prescribed by the
Luxembourg authorities for Ludembourg investiment companies
and include the lollowing significant accounting policies:

{a) Valualion of Invesiments and Othey Assels
The Fund’s investments and ofher sssels are valued as follows
Hon-Money Market Portfolios

= T boans are nol lIsled on any secunties exchange. In
dedermining the Met Assel Value {HAVY). the Porticlio utiises
e valuations of lerm loans furnished by a pricing service
approved by the AIFM. The pricing service typically values.
termm loans al the bid price when quolalions ane readily
avallable. Term loans for which quotations are nod readily
avallable are valued al fair markel value on a consistent basis
as determined by the pricng senice using pricing madnces o
detegmine valiations. The procedures of the picing services
and s evalualions are reviewed by the livvestment Adviser of
e relevant Portfolio (the Tnvestnment Adviser™p under the
general supervision of the AIFM. The AFM has determined in
g Faith thal the use of & icng service s a fair method of
dedermaning the valuation of lerm loans,

Portiolio secunities comsrsting of equiles, bonds and other
debt instruments {othes than short-denm obligations but
inchading listed kswes) may be valued on the basis of prices
furnished by one or more pricing services which detemmine
prices bor nomal, insiilutional -size frading undis of such
securities using marked information. ransactions for
comparatile securities and varous relatinships betwesn
securiies thal are generally recognised by msiutionsl
lraders,

Porlolic secaumities that afe listed on stock exchanges o
traded on other regulaed markets are valued 8 the last
fmown price on such exchanges of markeds as of the dose ol
e biidiness day Ininediately preceding the valuslion date
with the exception of Global Equity Inoome Forliolio for which
securitbes are valued al the valuation date the last known price
as of 400 pm. Luxembourg time ("4PM CET" oo, in each
case, the "Relevant Time") If there ae no such zales of a
particular securty, the value of such securnly will be the last
avallable bid price of the Redevant Time of, in ceriain
arcumstances, such portfolio secunties are valued al the kast
sabe price on the exchange thal is the primany market for such
sacurilies, or tha last quoled bid price for those secumtes for
which the Overthe-Counter COTCT) maked such a3 NASDACL
Is the primary market for Bsled securilies.

= Investments n open-ended collectve investiment schemes are
valued on the basis of the lag avalable nol assel value of the
units of such collecive ivestment schemes;

Annual repor and audited financial statoments  [45]
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

= Foeed inoome searities (hal ae nol listed on slock exchanges
of traded on other regulated makels are valued at the last
available bid price or vield equivalents obiained Trom one o
mena dealers or pricing services, Sacuriies traded in the OTC
ke ane valued at the las) avallabde bid price. In cases
where securilles are traded on more than one exchange. the
gocurities ane valued on Lhe exchange deskgnated by of under
the direction of the AIFM as the primary magkel. Portfolio
securities thal are raded both in the OTC market and on a
slnck exchange are valued according to the broades! and
mesl representalive marked,

When marked quotations are nol readily avallable or the AIFM
dedegrines thal the independent markel quotaion does nol
refled fair magkel value. the AIFM wll, in seoordance with
applicable laws, determine a far markel value for that assel of
lizbility. ¥When determining the pnce for such an assel or
liability. the AFM may use one or more of a vanely of fair
valuation methodologies {depending on fadors including the
assel ype). The AIFM might, for example, price the assel
hased on the onginal cost of the investment o it maght use
preprietary or third-pagly models. mcluding models thal rely
upan dwect portfolic management pricing inpuls and which
refled the significance altnbwded 1o the vanous Factors being
conslderad by the AIFM when il values the assel andior
liability, a5 well a5 certain assumpions. The AlFM might also
uze prices of actual, executed, Mstorcal ransactions in the
assel andior labillly (oo related or comparable assels andior
liabilities) &5 & basks for valualion or even use, where
approprale, an appralsal by a third party esporienced in the
valuation of similar assets andiorn kabadilies.

As al 31 January 2022, the adjusted far value applied 1o cerlain
secyrilies s discdosed in the table below

ol Hedl

Poetinlin Fair walue faneis

iz o Slraticees Podlaho (k2N 15644 o

Plesase refer tothe Portfolio of Invesiments section for further
detalls of the secunlies.

Super Money Market Fund

= The AIFM has established procedwes designed 1o stabilise, o

the extent reasonably possible and in acoordance with the
Money Market Funds Regulation (the MMFR", the Super
Money Markel Fund's price per unil as commputed for the
purpose of subscriptions and redemplions a3l USD 1 {he
“comvstanl NAYT) . NAY is rounded 1o the nearest pes centadge
podint, or ils equivalant in currency lerms;

* The Portiolio's underlying securities and money markel
instruments are valued based upon their amortised oost. This
Inwolves valuing an mstiument al ils cosl and thereafer
assuming a conslant armorlisalion lo malurnity of any discount
of premium, regardiess of the inpad of Nuciuating interes)
rales o e rrarked value of the instruments. Whiks this
method provides certamly in valualion, il may resull in periods
during which value, as determined by amoitised oosl, s
higher o lower than the price the Super Money Market Fund
wiould receive I i sold the instrurment,

[46]  BlackRock Glebal Invesiment Series

* The Portfolio is dassified as a short term Public Debd CNAY
MMF and complies with the requirements under MMFR. As a
resull of this, the AIFM has introduced additional prudent and
ngorous iquidity managament proceduras lo ensure
compliance with any liquidity thresholds applicable 1o the
Poortholic:;

To assess whether the assets of the Portfolio aré sulliciently
liquid b meed reasonatdy loresecabde redemplions and nol
fowce assels from being kquidated a1 disoounted prices, the
valatility of the Portiolio’s assets is frequently monitored. The
AIFM may also apply one or more of Lhe following messures:

= imposing bquidty fees on redemptions thal adequately
reflect the cost o the Portiolio of achieving quedity and
ensure thal the wnitholders who remain in the relevant
Porttolio are not unfairly disadvaniaged when olher unit
holders redesm thelr units duing e period,

i, within a perod of 90 days, the lotal duration of
suspensions excesds 15 days, the Super Money Market
Fund shall aulomatically cease ko be a short-lesm Public
Dbt CNAY MMF and the AIFM shall nform unitholders of
ihis facl;

alter the Board of Diredctors of (he Management Cormpany
of the Portfolio has determined its course of adion with
regard to above apoinls, it shall premply provide details of
ils decigion 1o the competent authority of the Portiolio:

lirersing redamplion gates that limBl the smadnt of waits 1o
ez resdessmed on any one working day o @ mesdmun of
100 of the units of the Postlolio lor aiy pefiod up 1o

15 working days;

= Inpersing a suspension of redemplions lor amy penod o up
1o 15 working days, of

= takireg no imimediate adion other than fulflling the obligaton
laid dovan in Articke: 24 (2} of the MMFR.

The Por tlolio caloulates & shadow NAY whereby umde bying
securitbes and money market ingliuments are valued based
Upsn @ rreed K-Lo-manked pce. In compliance with MMFR
respuiremnents, the diffesence between the constant NAY pes
unit and the NAY per unit calculated wsing mank-to-marked is
rmondlored and published daily on the websile of the

MMF: www blackrock com

All Portfollos
= Cash is valued &l its nomenal arnount

= Repurchase agreements and revesse repurchase agreements
are: valued at cost plus sociued interest. Recevable and
payable balances ielaled 16 fepurchase aqreemens and
rewerse repurchase agrecments are induded in the Staterment
of Mat Assels respedively unded the captions "Recetvable bor
investmemts sold” and Payable for invesiments purchased”.
The accrued interest from reverse repurchase agresments s
inchaded in the Salement of Nel Asseds under the caption
“Interest and dividends recefvable™

= Liquid asgels such as money mc kel nstrunwents are valued
ot an Aot lised oos basis;
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

= Assels which indude, in particula, imerest and dividends
recevable, receivable for investments sobd and recetvable for
Furd units subsoribed are valued al nominal value,

= Lizbilitkes which indude, m particular, payable for mvestiments
purchased . payable lor Fuind unils redesmed, merest and
dividends payabde ane valued al nominal valus.

(b} Realsed gains and losses on Investments

Realised gains and losses on sales of mvestmenis have besn
determined on the basis of the average cost method

() Incomed Expense from Investments

The Fund takes aredil o inocome from its ivestments on the
Talkowing basis:

= interest income s acciued daily and ncludes the amonisation
on a siraighi-Ene bags of premiums and accrelion of
discotints.

= bank interes is recognised on an accuals basis and mdudes
interest incomes iom Feverss repurchass aorsEmenls,

¥

dividend oo 12 accued on the ecdividend date and is
shown net of willkholding Lax:

= lmcorme [rom reverse repuichase iansactons is incduded In
the Statement of Operations under the caplion Bank
([ PR o

* an mlerest rale differential CIRDT) 5 the diference in inlarest
rates belween wo similar interest beaning securities which
arises from the currency hedging process eq. i the 1 manth
interest rate on US0 s 0.25% and an AUD Ui 1%, then the
implied IRD is 0 T5%. Traders in the foretgn exchange marked
use IRD's when pricing fonward exchange rates. IRDs can be
postive, nil or negative. Inclusion of IRDYs n dvidends meay
constitute & payment from capital in some junsdictions. IRD s
recorded as miscellaneous fees in the Statement of
Operations and Changes in Nel Assels,

{d) Financal Dernvative stmuments

Duming thes veawr thee Fund has entered into s number of lorward
foresgn exchange ransacions and fulures conlracts, Open
futures contracts are valued at the fair rmarked vaue 1o close the
comracts on the accounting date S pluses/delicils arsing from
these and closed unsellled contracts are taken to unrealised
appredalion/{depradation) and are indudead under assals or
liabilibes (as appropiate) in the Statement of Nel Assels. The
nel change in unrealised appredalion of depreciation and the
nel realised gains of losses on selllement or closing
ransaclons of forward loreign exchange transactions and
futures contracts are presented in the Statement of Operalions
and Changes in Mel Assols,

Duging the year, the Fund has entered into swap ransacions 1o
exchange the relurn generaled by one mstrumenl for the return
generaled by amother imvestment. The Fund can write cred
defaull swaps ((CDSEY and purchese COS. When the Fund
wriles andlor purchases a COS, asenes of premiums is pald o
of paid by the Fund, in return for a payment conlingent on a
cresfil evient {predefined in the agreement). The premiums ane
Inchuded in the oost of COS. Where possible, swaps are mearked
Iy ket based upon daily prices obtained from thied party

pricing agents and vertlied againsd the actual rmarkel meker.
Where such quotations are nol available swaps are priced
braged upon daly quolations from the marked maker In both
cases changas in quotalions are recorded &5 nel change n
unrealised appredation or deprecation In the Stalement of
Operalions and Changes in Ned Azsels. Mol realised gains or
losses on matuity of lerminaton of the swaps and the Interest
earnedd in relalion 1o the swaps are presented in the Stalement
of Operations and Changes in Ned Asseds

Each Portlolio may soll call options and purchase pul oplions on
stock mdices o seck o hedge portfolio secunlies against the
impadt of anticipated general poice declings in equily mankets of
specilic industry sedors thereol, Options on indices are similar
o options on securilies excepl thal on exerdss of assignment,
the: parties 1o he comrad pay of recele an amount of cash
equal 1o the difference: betwesn the dosing value of the index
and the exercise price of the oplion limes a specilied multiple
The effectiveness of a hedge employing stock index options will
depend primarily on the degree of correlalion belwean
rmovements in the value of the index underlying the option and
in the portion of the portfolio beng hedged. Among other
fadors, the degres of cormelalion with respaed o conver tilble
securiles will ba affected by the degrea lo which the marked
value of porifolio securilies s altfbutable to their conversion
wvalue The nel changs in unrealised apprecation or deprecialion
and the net realised gains of sses on expialion o closing
tramsad ions of opions are presented in the Stalement of
Operalions and Changes in Ned Assols

{e) Feeign Exchange

The cxvel ol investmonls in currencles olher than the currency of
dencrmination of the respedive Portfolio has been transiated at
thes rates of exchange ruling at the time of purchase, Market
value of invesimants and other assels n currendies other than
lhe canrency of denomination of the respective Portiolio have
been translated & the exchange rate prevalling # the Portfolios
valualion point in Luxemnbourg &% at 31 January 2022 The ned
change in unreslised apprecation or depreciation and the nel
realised gains of losses on disposal or setilement of other
assels of labililles in currendes other than the anrency of
denomination of the respedive Portfolio are presented in the
Statement of Operalions and Changes in Nel Assels

e and expenses in cumencies other than the currendsy of
denomination of the respadive Portfolio have been ranslaled al
the rales of exchange prevailing on transaction date

Differant exchange rales are resulling from the pricing mal rix
and diffesrent valuation points betwesn the different Portfolios. In
lhe below table, the 4PM CE T exchange rales on 31 January
2022 ane presented for Global Allocalion Portfelio. Global Equaty
Incoma Porticlio and World Income Portlolio, the 5PM CET
exchange rales on 28 Janwary 2022 are presented for Inocime
Strategies Porticlio and Super Monay Market Fund

The fellowing exchange rates were used to ranslale the
investments and olher assets and other labdities for all
Petfolios denominated n camencles olher than the base
currency of the respedive Portfolio as at 31 January 2022

Strategies Past ol and
¢ Meney biarkel Fund

uso
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued
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{fy Combined Financial Stalemenls

The Combined Financal Statements of the Fund ae expressed
in US0 and nclude the tota of the Iinandal stalements of the
different Por tfolios

{) Deferred Crganisational Expenses

Deferred organiaalional expenses af e capitalised and are
amelised on @ straighl-line basis over a five year peiod, As al
3 January 2022, all Portfclos had hully armorised ther deferred
organisalional expenses

{h Income Equalisation

Each Portfolio follows the accounting pradice of equalisation lo
prexent the undistributed income per unil from fucluating solely
bey reason of subscriplions and redemplions of Hs unils. This s
acoomplished by mantaining an equalisation account for the
relevant Portfolio. The egualisation aocount is oredited with that
portion of the proceeds of subsaribed units representing the ned
undistributed incomme per unit of those units, and s debited with
thiad portion of any redemplion pay ment representing nel
undistribsuted imcomse per unil of the redecmed units. A portion
of the dividends dedared by a Portioho may consist of amounts
previously credited io the equalisation accounl. The yield
reported lo mvesions will ncude amounts paid from net income
as well as any amount padd from the equalisation acooant

The Income E qualisation is nduded in the Movements in unil
capital in the Statement of Operations and Changes in MNet
Assels

{1 Unfunded loans represent the remaining otdigation of the
Portfolic o the bomower

As al 31 January 2022, the Income Siralegies Porlfolio had an
unfunded loan of USD 120 812 disclosed under Payabde for
urfundied loan” in the Statement of Nel Assels

3. Management Company and Investment Advizers
{a) Managemand Compaiy

BlackRodk Fund Managemen! Company S A is the
Masagement Company of the Fund. Pursuant o the
Managemant Regulations, the Managemenl Company has
agreed o manage the Fund's Portfolos for the exdusive
aomunt of the redevant Unitholders. The Depositary and sudh
olher agents as appropoate, incuding Dstiibutors of the Fund’s

[48]  BlackRock Glebal Invesiment Sories

Unitz in and oulside Japan are appointed by the Management
Ceompany The Managemenl Company has delegated the
appoiniment of Distributors Lo the Principal Distribulor

BlackRock Fund Managamenl Company S A Is awholly owned
siibsidiary within the BlackRock Group and s regulated by the
Commigsion de Surveiliance du Secleur Financier ("CSSF")

(b} AP

The Managemenl Company has appoinled BlackRock Assel
Management edand Lirsted as the altemative vestment fund
manager o provide and procure the provision of imvestment
management services, induding portfoo and risk mansagement
furcticns, for the Fund within the meaning of the AIFMD. The
AFM 15 eniled 1o dedogale ds fundions, powers, discrelions,
duties and obligations, subjed to AIFMD requirements

Thee AIFM i3 a wholly owned subsidiary within the BlackRock
Group and Is authewised by the Central Bank of Ireland

Ther ABFM s pald oul of the management lee due o the
Managemeant Company. as cuthined in Note 4

{c} Investment Advigers
Sulyed e the overall responsibility of the AIFM . each of the

Peatodicss recees investiment sdvisony services iom the
Invasiment Advisers

|k il Adheia i i

bl Allocation Porfoba
G dl Equity Income Postlol
rizome Sirdeges Porfolo
Super Monsy Warkel Fund
World Incoms Porl ok

EtackRock Japsan Co, Lid

BlackRock |rvest menl Managemen LK) Limded
ElackRock Firancal Managemant, Inz
Blachitock Fnanoal Marsgement, Inc

Etackfock Japan Co, Lid

Theer Ivveestment Advigers form part of the BlackRock Group

The Investment Advisers are each paid oul of the managenment
fze e bo Uhe: Mansgement Comgeainy, s outlined in Note 4

4. Management and Distribution Fees
{a) Management fees

Dunng the year. the Fund pald manageman fees tothe
Managensnt Company

Theer leved of management fee varies frorm 0.33% Lo 0. 75% per
annum of the NAV, with the exceplion of Class F units, which do
ned pay @ management fea bul rather afee to the Investiment
Adviger or affiliates unde 5 separate agreasment, The level of
management fee vares according o which Portbolio and umil
class the imvestor buys. These fees acorue daily, are based on
the WA of the rebovant Portioio and are pald monthly. The
Fund's AIFM and Invesiment Adviser fees are bome by the
Managemeant Company and patd through the managemen fee

(b Crisdribation fees

Ther Manageamenl Company has also entered into & Distritution
Agresment wilh BlackRock Investimen! Managemsent

(UK Limsted {the Principal Distntutor”). The Pandpal
Distritastor may condude montraciual arrangenents wilh cenlain
Distribaors for the distnbution of units outside the U S such as
the: Japanese Distibulors (as disclosed on pages 3 o 4)

129/258



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Notes to the Financial Statements continued

The lewe] of distiibation Tes vames from O 1667% to 1_00% per
annum, of the NAY, with the exception of Classes AD units, D
units, F units, Instilutional | units, which do nol pay a disinbution
fee The level of disinbution fes vanes acoording to which
Poatolio and unit dass the investor buys. These lees acoue
daily, are based on ihe NAY of ihe redevani Portlolio and are

pald quartlesy

The managesnent and distrbaulion lees per unil dass for each
Portlolio are disclosed in délall in the Fund's Prospecius

Since 30 Apwil 2020, there has boen a lee walver on
rrenagement fees, dsiibution fees in place for the Super
Mosvey Markel Fund's Common, Cundent and nstlutonal | units

5. Coordination Fees

The Management Commpany has entered inlo an agreament with
BlackRock Operations (Luxernbourg) S a cl, (BROL) pursuant
1o which BROL , under the divection of the Board of Direclods ol
the: Management Company. provides certain corporate and
adrmingsirative coordination senices on Behall of the Fund

The coordination fee rate is 0.025% of the average daly NAV of
ihe Fund {excluding Class F units), per anmm

6. Administration Fees

The: Management Company has appointed State Streel Bank
International GmbH, Luxembourg Branch, 49, avenue J-F
Kennedy, L1855 Luxernbourg, a5 the Fund's Administrative
Agent in Luxernbourg to assist the Management Company al its
principal office in Luxermbowg with general sdministrative lasks
pirsusant o the Administraton Agreemant, agains dhanging
usual fess for these services.

7. Audit Fees
Detatled below are the fees pasd to Delotte Audit 5.4 ol for the
year ended 31 January 2022,

H Jummey 2122

EUR
Sul ard s retabod Senais foodipding \AT) G0
lorraudd sanases —

8. Depositary Fees

T hex Management Company has entered inlo the Depositary
Agreement with the Depositary, Stale Streel Bank International
GmbH, Lugemboung Brandh. Thig agreement was amendied
effedive 17 January 2019 in ne with the appointrment of the
AlFM,

The Depositary Agreement provides that all securities and cash
of the Fund, other than cash held in rading acoounts of hald in
any operalting accounis for expensas or dividend disbursement
acoounts (which may be maintained al other banks), ane to be
held by o to the coder ol the Depasitary provided that the
Management Company may place cash in overnight call
accounts or on lerm deposit with olher banks apgeoved by the
Deposilary, who shall continue 1o supervise such funds. The
Depasitary s responsible for the collection of principal and
income en, and the payment for and collechon of proceeds of
socuiies boughl and sold for the Fund. Inline with the
compliance of the AlFM and the Fund's compliance with AIFMD,
the Depositany's role pursuant to AIFME enhances Linghold er
pratecton and ncludes the responsibility 1o safekeap the assels
of the Fund and hold in custody all inanaal mstruments, cash
and other assels of the Fund {the “Safekeeping Fundtion™)

Thex Depositary charges the Fund lees bor these serices in
accordance with s usual rates expressed as a fracdion of a
percentage per annum of the nel assels of the Fund. The
Dieposiizry may appoind one of more cosrespondent banks, and
it is expected thal the Depositary relains a correspondent bank
in the United States, whose lees shall be borne by the Fund. As
part of its Salekeeping fundion, the Deposfary 1s latde o the
Fumd for the loss of linandal instruments which are held o

custody

9. Transactions with Related Parties

The ultimete holding company of the Management Comipany,
the Principad Distributor, the AIFM, the vestment Manages and
the: Investment Advizers is BlackRock, Inc., a company
incorporated in Dedaware, USA,

Dumingg the year there have been no significant ransactions
which were outside the ordinary course of business or which
ware nol on normal aormemencial e s,

10. Taxes

Under present Luxembourg law and practice, the Fund s not
Il b0 amy Lusesnboung of dieary incom: of capllal galng ax,
no ane dividends pald by the Fund subject to any Luxenmbourg
withhwolding L. However the Fund is subjsct 1o 3 subscoriplion
tas { Taoce o abonnement) of 0.06% per annum kevied on the
MNAY of sach Portholio sl the lasl day of each cdendae quarter,
in acoordanoe with the 200 0 Law, excepl in resped of Super
Meney Marked Fund as well a3 in respecd of the Pertfolios o
unit classes reserved for instilutional imeestons within the
rmeaning of Artiche 174 of the 2010 Law, on which a reduced tae
of 0.01% per annum s kevied. For the year ended 31 January
2022 Global Alocation Portfolio and World Incomie Portioso
hiawe not pabd Lusembourg taxdes, a5 no subsaiption iax is paid
on the assels held by the Portfolios in other under Lakings o
colledive imnvesiment already subjed o thal tax in Luxemboug.

Under applicable loresgn tax laws, withholding Laxes may be
imposed on inlerest, dividends and capital gains al vanous
rales,

11. Dividends

Super Money Market Fund

The ned inecme (e, acorued interest ineome nel of accued
exprenses) is dedared a3 a dividend on each valuation date on
all units outstanding on thal day 1o the Unithelders of recosd
immediabely poor 1o the daily detesmination of MAV pes uni,
prevadied abways that units shall be entitled $o a dividend only
frean the: day on which their subscription is sellled prior to 2P0
Liseesrnbouirg lme and thal units redecmed shall nol be entitbed
tor rescedve the daily dividend dedared on the setllernent day of

thedr redemgdion

Hon-Money Market Portfolios

The ned ineome of the redevant other Portlolios consists of

{1 interes sccied | discount eamed (nduding both onginal
isgie and markel discount) of olher Income eamed, (I less the
edimated expenses of the Portfolio (incuding management
feeg). In resped of each dividend declased, the Board of
Diveciors of the Management Company may determins if, and
to whal extent. such dividend s 1o be pald oul of undistributed
el e strmeent noomee, realised and unrealised capital gains,
regpacively increased of decreased by nel equalisation aadits
of debds

Annual report and audited financial statoments  [49]
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

12. Credit Facllity

As al 31 January 2022, Income Strategles Portfolio was entitled
1o & credit Facility of LS 40 000,000 from Stale Street Bank
and Trust Company. As al 31 Janiary 2022, aloan of LISD

O was drawn down

A loan commitmen fee s charged on a daily basts i relation 1o
this credit Faality which 1s induded in the Siatament of
Operations and Changes in Ned Assets. The loan cormilment
fee consists of 015% chamged on the unusad portion of the
cresil Faciiny and the Federal Funds Effedve Rale o the
Uverndghd Bank Funding Rate (depending on which is aghe) +
0 90% margn spread on the used portion of the aedil Facilily

The comimitment fee is disclosed in the Statement of
Crperations under the caplion Loan commilment fees”

13. Financial Derlvative Instruments and Efficlent Portfolio
Management Techniques

Each of the Portlolios may usse derivatives 1o hedge markst and
currency nsk, and for the purposes of efficient portfolio
management

The use of derivalives may expose the Forifolios to a higher
deqres of nsk. In particular. dervative contrads can be highly
wolatile, and the amownt of nitial margin is generally small
reslaive 1o the size ol the contrad so thal transadions e
geared. A relatively small markel movement may have a
petentially larger impad on desivatives than on standard bonds
o equilles,

Prlesase reler to the Portlolio of Investments section bor more
details

14, Transaction costs

In order o achieve 118 Invesimenl objecive, a Portiolo will inour
ransadions cosis in refalion 1o trading adiily on its Portloio of
investiments. Disclosed in the table below are separately
identifiable iransacion costs incurred by each Portfolio for the
yvear endad 31 January 2027, Thaese include comrmission cosis,
setllement fees and broker fees.

Peatiobad

(ol Alkszation Podfoke UsH -

[50] BlackRock Global Invesiment Sories

oY Tramaction cosh

Gohel Equity ncome Poet ol Ush i v
rcome Sirafeges Porfolo ush LITE
Super Money Warkel Fund ush -
World Income Por ok LED —

15. Amounts due fromito broker

The Portiolios rade derivalives with a range of counterpanies.
The counlerparties 1o forward foreign exchange lransacions
and syap confracds ae shown in the Portbolio of Investments.

Cash collaleral is paid o recened on swaps 1o cover any
exposune by the counterpany 1o the Fund or by the Fund (o the
counlerparty,

Dz frormile Broker on the Statement of Nel Asses congists of
cash ollateral and margin pakdirecetved rom the Fund's
cleanng brokers and vanous counlerpariies

16. Subsequent events

Sinee the finandal yvear ended 31 January 2022, cortaln
hinandaal markets have fallen due pimarily to geo-political
lenstons ani=ng froen Fussta's incurson inlo Ukralne and the
impad of the subsequent range of sandions. requliations and
other measures which impaired nommal ading in Russian
securties. The Board of Directors of the Managerment Company
of the Fumd cominue to monitor investmeent pefor rance i line
with the Portlolios imvesimenl objedives, with no distuplion o
ihe operations of the Portlolios and the publication of nel assel
vaues

Effedive 14 March 2022, Tarek Mahmoud was appointed as a
Diraclor of the Board of the Management Company

Theere hawe been no olher evenls subsequent 1o the Anancal
weal end. and up to the date of the approval of the financal
stalernents, which in the opinion of the Board of Diredors of the
Managemeant Company may have had a materia impad on the
fircancial stalements for the inandal year ended 31 January
2022

17. Approval date

The Inancial slalements were approved by the Board o
Direciors of the Managerment Company on 25 May 2022
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Appendix | — Unit Classes (Unaudited)

Unit Classes In Issue Cammon Units

As at 31 January 2022, the Fund offers the following unit Common diztrbutng il in US0
poteke
Currant dsinbuting unitin USD

Imstituthomal | Uinits'

natiudonal | celribubng unil in 3D

Lia3a e it kng 13

Ryt o prabsbdion af bree SR

Unit Classes Launched
Tteer e were no unil classes launched during the year

Unit Classes Closed
There were no unil classes dosed dunng the year

[54] BlackRock Global Invesiment Sarias

132/258



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2023
184,088,506 25,730,050
6,447,670 901,191
177,640,836 24,828,860
28,212,946 3,943,323
149,427,889 20,885,536
1,822,924
7,997,520
15.48 2,164
18.68 2,611
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50 6,989 2023
12.5 1,747 40,000

24

2019 17 2019 17
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2023
Tarek Mahmoud 0
EMEA

Joanne Fitzgerald 0
Leon Schwab 0
Geoffrey Radcliffe

0
Svetlana Butvina 0
Jonathan Griffin 0
Richard Gardner 0

) 0
Michael Renner
1990

0

Deloitte Audit S.a r.1I.

Deloitte Audit

S.ar.l.
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2023

2,839,875,348.87
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38 59

2023 31

139.77

23 103
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2022 12 31
2022 12 31 2021 12 31

842 117,686 831 116,149

10 3,578 500,097 2,966 414,558
1,355 189,388 954 133,341

4,933 689,485 3,920 547,898

5,775 807,172 4,751 664,047

11 500 69,885 500 69,885
12 230 32,147 591 82,604
2,412 337,125 1,714 239,566

3,142 439,157 2,805 392,055

13 2,633 368,014 1,946 271,992
5,775 807,172 4,751 664,047

2023 19

15 29
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2022 12 31
2022 2021

15,548 2,173,144 10,903 1,523,912

(15,078)  (2,107,452) (10,600)  (1,481,562)

470 65,692 303 42,350

(133) (18,589) (128) (17,891)

337 47,102 175 24,460

11 1,537 — —

@ (140) @ (140)

347 48,500 174 24,320

(10) (1,398) (138) (19, 288)

337 47,102 36 5,032

29
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2022 12 31
2022 500 591 1,714 2,805
— — 337 337
— — 337 337
— (361) 361 —
2022 12 31 500 230 2,412 3,142
2021 500 519 5,566 6,585
— — 36 36
— — 36 36
— — (3,816) (3,816)
— 72 (72) —
2021 12 31 500 591 1,714 2,805
2022 69,885 82,604 239,566 392,055
— — 47,102 47,102
— — 47,102 47,102
— (50, 457) 50,457 —
2022 12 31 69,885 32,147 337,125 439,157
2021 69,885 72,541 777,960 920,385
— — 5,032 5,032
— — 5,032 5,032
— — (533,362) (533,362)
— 10,063 (10,063) —
2021 12 31 69,885 82,604 239,566 392,055

15 29
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2022 12 31

2022 2021
337 47,102 36 5,032
— — (11) (1,537)
(11) (1,537) — —
10 1,398 138 19,288
336 46,963 163 22,783
10 (612) (85,539) (1,751) (244,737)
13 687 96,022 818 114,332
411 57,445 (770) (107,623)
(10) (1,398) (138) (19,288)
401 56,048 (908) (126,911)
14 — — (3.816) (533,362)
/() 401 56,048 (4,724) (660,273)
954 133,341 5,667 792,077
— — 11 1,537
12 31 1,355 189,388 954 133,341

29
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2022 12 31

1855 35 35A,
Avenue JF Kennedy, L-1855 Luxembourg, Grand Duchy of Luxembourg

2023 19

12

12

2022
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/(

2022 2021
15,548 10,903

2022 2021
5,613 275
472 arr
3,313 3,514
6,150 6,637
15,548 10,903

10
2022 2021

11
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2022 2021
41 40

2022 2021
115 104
(105) 1
— 33
10 138
10 138

24.94 2021
24.94 2021

2022 2021
347 174
86 43
« )/ (105) 1
29 61
— 33
10 138

15
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2022 12 31 2021 12 31

842 831

2022 12 31 2021 12 31

831 831

11 —

12 31 842 831

2022 12 31 24 (2021 30 )
12
10
842 (2021 831 ) 842,013 (2021 831,393)
2022 12 31 15,548 (2021 10,903
) 2022 12 31 3,378 (2021

2,592 )
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2022 12 31 2021 12 31
180 374
3,378 2,592
20 —
3,578 2,966
2022 12 31 2021 12 31
40 500 40 500
10
50 2021 2022
2021 165
413 2021 93
180 2021 541
2022 12 31 2021 12 31

39 77
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2,594 1,861
— 8
2,633 1,946
14
2022 12 31 2021
15
2022
842 842
2021
831 831
16

2022 12 31
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— 842

1,355 —
180 —
1,535 842

2,633 —
2,633 —

2021 12 31

— 831

954 —
374 —
1,328 831

1,946 —

1,946 —

15
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2022

180

2021

374

2022

14,969
92
15,061

2,918

2021

10,594
86
10,680

1,861

19

www . blackrock.com

50
10055 invrel@blackrock.com
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BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A.

Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2022

3 December M December

2022 0
Note 5000 & 009
Aszels
Mon-current assets
Financial assels B B2 H31
Current assets
Freade and other neceivables 1o 3578 2 96
Caszh and cash equivalents 1.355 954
4933 3.9M
Temal assets 3773 4,751
Equity and liabilities
Eqquiry
Shwre capital 0 S} S0
[iher reserves 12 230 s
Retained carmings 2412 1.714
Tedtal gty 3042 2 A0%
Current linbilities
Frude and other payables 13 2633 (R
Femal cygoite and labilitics 5775 4.751

Approved by the Board oo 19 Apad 2023 and signed on s behalf by
T

)y _,r":

/ ﬁ?f’ﬁ?/

The potes on pages £S5 o 29 form an integral pant ol these inoncil satements,
Page 12
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BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A.

Income Statement for the Year Ended 31 December 2022

1022 b

Mile 5 L] 5 mag

Revene 4 15,548 101G
Cou ol sales LI15.07H) IR

Ciross. profil 470 303
Administralive expenses {133) 12K}

Ciperaling prolit g 337 175

Finance income I -
Met lotses on derivalive Nnancizh mamurments i1 )

Frolil belure Lax 347 174
Inuoma lax expense 7 [ 1{h L]

FrrolEl for the voar 337 ih

The above resubts were derived wholly from eontinuing oprations

The notes on pages 15 o 29 feem an integral pan of these inanciab stalemen s

Prage 11
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BlackRock Fund Management Company 5 A.

Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended 31 December 2022

Cash MNows from operating activities

Prosiit fur ihe year

Ak justments Lo eush ows Imam pon-cish dems:
Forcion cxchange gain

Finanee income

Twomie tax RRPEST

"ﬂr’nd,mg_ caprlal adpusiments:
Incnzase n trade and clber recevables
Inerease i trade and ciber payablcs

Cash generated from oporaons

Imecovme Laxes puid
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BlackRock Fund Management Company 5.A.

Maotes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2022

I General information
The Company is a private company limited by share capital incorporated and domiciled in Luxembourg,

The address of its registered olTice is:
35A. Avenue JF Kennedy
Luxembourg

L-1835

Giramd Duchy of Luxembssurg

These financizl stalements were authorised for issue by the Bourd on 19 April 2021

1 Accounting palicies

sSummary of significant accounting policies and key accounting estimates
The primcipal accounting policies applicd in the prepuration of these linancial statements are sef out below,
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented. unless olherwise stuted,

Basis of preparation

The linancial statements have been preparcd in accordance with adopled IFRSs as approved by the FLT and
under historical cost accounting rules, except for the revaluation of any financial instruments held ag fair value.
Historical vost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for assels.

Consideration of climate risk

As discussed in the Dircetors’ report the Company reviews and manages climate refuted risks. In preparing the
financial stmements, the directors have considered the implications of climate related risk and have concluded
that there has been no material impact identified on the financial reporting judgements and estimates or on the
voluation of the Company s assels and liabilitics,

Cining concern
The Comparny's business activitles, together with the factors likely 10 alfect its future development., performance
ansl position, are set out in the Directors’ Repon along with principal risks and uncertaintics,

In pssessing the going concern status, the directors have faken into account various foctors, including the
financial position of the Company and in particular the significant net cash position, The Company has. ot the
dute of this report, sulficient existing finances available for is estimated requirements for the mext 12 monzhs,
This. wygether with s proven ability @0 generate cash from operations. provides the dircctors with he
confidence that the Company is well placed 1o manage its business risks suceessiully

After muking appropriste enguiries, the direotors have o reasonable expectation that the Company hus adeguate
resourees Lo continue in operational exisience for the forgsecable fwune, buing ot least 12 months from the date

of this report, Accordingly. they continue to adogt the going concern basis in preparing the Directors” Report and
financial staterments.
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BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A.

Motes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

I Accounting palicies (continued )

Changes in accounting poliey

New accounting standards, interpretations and amendments adopted

None of the standards, ingerpretations and amendments effective for the first time from | Januery 2022 have had
a material effect on the linancial statements,

Revenue recognition
.ﬁ'ﬂ'r.lgm!nm

The Company cams revenue from the provision of services relating w investment management  and
administration fees, and distribution fees, Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised services 1o
customers, 1e, when dor as) a performance obligation i satisfied, in an amount that reflects congideration o
which the Company expects o be entitled in exchange for thase services {the "transaction price™ ), The Company
enters inbo contracts that con include multiple services and, in certain instances, may charge a “unitary fee” 10
gover these serviees. Such fees are aceounted for separately 11 they are determingd o be distinet. Consideration
for the Compuny's services is generally i the form of varishle consideration because the amount of fees is
subject o market conditions that s ootside the Company’s influenee. The Company includes variable
consideration us part of ils transaction price when it is highly probable that a significant reversal will not oeour,
i.e. when the associnted uncertainty i resolved, For some contracts with customers, the Company involves third
partics and refated parties in providing services o the customer. Generally, the Compamy is deemed o be the
principal in these amangements because the Company comtrols the promised services belore they are ransferred
w customers, ond pecordingly presents the revenue gross of relisted costs,
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BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A.

Motes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

T Accounting policies (continued)

Few arvange e

Below are details of fee armangements, and how these are measured and recognised, Tor revenue from the
provision of services:

*  Iovestment managerment and sdministration fees: Fees are recognised as the services are performed over
time, Such fees are primanily based on agreed-upon perocentages of net asset value, AUM or committed
capital. These fees are affected by changes in net assel value. AUM or committed capital, including markel
appreciation or  deprociation, foreign exchange translation and net inflows or outflows, Invesument
managemetl and administration fees lor investment funds ore shown net of fees waived pursuant to
comraciual expense limitstions of the funds or volumtary wadvers. Fees are generally imvobeed monthly in
arrenrs,

= Distributeon fees: The Company accoants for fund distribution services and shareholder servicing as distint
services, separate from fund management services, becouse customers can benelit from cach of the services
on their own and because the services are separately identifable (that is, the nature of the prmised services
is to transfer each service individually . The Company records sales commissions as distribution lee revenue
for serving as the principal underwriter andior distributor for certein mstual funds that i manages,
Iisiribution fees are generally based on net psset values and are recognised when the services are perfomed
and the amwount is known. Consequently, o portion of the distribution fees recognised by the Company may
be reluted 1o the services performed in prior periods thar met the recognition criteria in the current period.
The Company recognises ongoing sharchelder servicing fee revenee when and os shareholder services are
performed over time. The Company contracts with third parties for vamous fund distribulion services and
sharcholder servicing to be performed on its behall, These arrangerments are gencerally priced as a portion of
the fre paid to the Company by the fund or as on agreed-upon percentage of net asset value. The Company
presents its distribution fees and distributbon and sorvicing costs imcarmed on g gross basis as il i3 deemed 10
b the principal in such transactions.

Fareign currency transactions and balances
The financial statements are presented in US dodior, which 15 the curmency of the primary ceonomic environment
in which the Company operales (ils functhonal currency ),

Transactions in currencies other than the Company's functional currency (fireign currencies) are recognised at
the rmes of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At each statement of linancial position date.,
mometary assets and labilities that are denominated in forelm currencies are retransbned o1 the rates prevailing
ol that date, Exchange differences on monglary stems ane revogmsed i the income statement in the period in
which they arise, Non-meenetary items fat are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign curmency are nog
retranalated. Non-monetary items carried af f@ir value that are denominated in foreign currencies ane tranaluled
al e rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Exchange differences on non-monetary
iteens, measured at fair value theough profic or boss ("FYTPL"), are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss
in the income statement in the period in which they arise.

Tax
Income tax expense represems the sum of the tax currenthy pavable,

The current income tax chorge s calculated on the busis of tax rtes and lows th hive been enacted oF
substantively enacted by the reporting dae in the countries where the Company operutes wnd generates 1axable
ingome,

Page 17

161/258



EDINETOOOO
O0OO00O0000000000o00o0noo0o0ogogodnoOn(es187)
Oooooooooooobooooooad

BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A.

Muotes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

1 Accounting palicies (continued y

Financial instruments

Recognition and derveagnition
Financial assets and nancial liabilities are recognised an the rade date when the Company becomes party Ly
the contractual provisions,

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights o the cash fows expire. or when the finencial
assel and substantiodly all the risks and rewards are transferred, Finangial lisbilities are dercoognised when the
obligation is extinguished, discharged, cancelled or expired.

Cfaxsificition aond iniial measwrement of fiancial assels

ANl Nnancial assets are nidally messured af G value adjested for transaction costs (where applicablel, except
tor trade recvivables that do not contain o significant financing component which are measured a1 transaclion
price.

Financial assets are classified and subsequently mexsunsd, based on business model and contractual eash Now
choractenistics. al: amorised cost: FVTPL.

All ineome and expenses relating w financial assets that are recognized in the mcome stalement are presented
within fimance costs. finance income or met gains o bosses on derivative finenciy] instrements, except for
impairment of trade receivables which ix presenied within adminisirative expenses,

Foreign exchunge gains or lesses arising on financisl ssoels o amortised cost are presented in the income
statement within administrative expenses and disclosed in note 3. For financial assets at FYTPL, the foreign
exchange component forms part of the fir value gains or losses and is recognised in the income statement
within met gains on derivative linancial instruments.

N nf!.wq e R e G e ril,lr Triscincil diisety

Fimoneial axsefs ol crmvrfised ¢osi

Fimangial assets are measured af amorised cost when their contractual cosh lows are solely pavments of
principal and interest and they are held within a business model designed o hold the asset and collict s cash
flows (and are mot designated as FVTPL),

The Company's cash and cash equivalents and trade and other receivables are measured of amortised cost using
ihie effective interest method and income is recopnised on ihis basis.

Finneil assers of folre volue through profir or fogs

Finangial assets that are held other than ‘hold w collect’ or 'hold o eollect and sell” are categorised at FVTPL.
Further, irrespective of business model, financial assels whose contractual cash Mlows are nod solely payments of
principal and interest are acosunted for at FVTPL

Ihe Comparny hos nol designated any amordised cost or foir value through other comprehensbve income
FYTOCT) financial assets at FYVTPL,

Torpaivmernt of ffmmetal aosels

All debtety pe financial assets. which are not messured at FVTPL, are assessed for impairment a1 each reporting
date using a forward-looking approach by identifving expecied credin bssses (“ECLA"),

lmpairmient provisions for trade receivables are recognised based on the simpliticd approach using the lifetime
ECLs and the single bss-rate approach.
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BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A.

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2022 {continued)

1 Accounting policies (continged)

For other fimencinl assets. where credit risk hos not increasesd significantly since initial recognition, twelve
mamh ECLs are recognised. For those where credit risk has increased significandy. lifetime ECLs ane
recognised.

For pssets held w1 amortised cost, eny ECL s recognised in the meome ststement with o corresponding
adjusiment to the asset’s carryving value through a provision scoount,

Clatssiffeation aud mreaswrement of fnaircial Habilities
Financial liabilities are initdally measered @ fair value and, where applicable, sdjusied for ranssction costs
unbess designared w FVTIPL.

Subsequently. financial labalities are measured af amorised cost using the effective interest method except for
comtingent consideration scquired in a business combination, held foe trading liabilities (including derivatives)
and financial liabilities designated at FYTPL. which are a fair valee with gains or losses recognised i the
Encome statemeni.

The Company's financial liohilities al amortised cost are trade and other pavables. The Company has ot
designated any financial labilites an FVTIEL,

In the income stalement inieresi-related charges are included within finance costs.

Forcign exchange gain or losses arising on financial liabilities ot amotised cost are presented in the inceme
staterment within administrative expenses and disclosed i nole 5,

Trerivative fimencial inciranems

The Company's derivative flinancial matruments, forwards and foreipn exchange, ane measured atl FVTPL, In the
statement of lnancial position, derivative Nnancial instruments with positive fair values junrealised gains) ane
included as assets and derivative finencial matniments with negative far values (unrealised losses ) arg included
s liabilithes,

The Company uses derivative financial mstruments W cconomically  hedge risk associaed with foreign
cxchange movements and markel price cxposure with respect o ceniain seed investments, 1L is mol the
Company's policy to trade in derivative instruments snd hedge accounting is not applied.

Feparity finstrunieanx

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds receivesk net of direct issue costs, The
Company's ordinory shares ore classilied as equity instruments.
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BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A.

Motes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

3 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation ancertainty

Inonre fives

The Comnpany 15 subject to income @y in numenous jurisdictions and judgement is required in determining the
provision for tax, During the ordinary course of business, there are many transactions for which the ultimate 1ax
determination is uncertinin. 10l is mo probable that the tx authority will sccept an uncertain tax tresiment, the
Company measures the effect of the uncenainty using cither the most likely amount or expeated value method,
depending on which method provides a better prediction of the resolution of uncertainty. To the extent that the
fimal tx outoome is different from the amdoums that were recorded, such differences will impact the income tax
expense in the period in which such determination is made

Full detuils are set out in note 7.

4  Hevenue
pL Ik ozl
5 000 5 00d
Invesiment management and distribution lees 15548 105903
Amalyvsis by investment styvle 2022 o
5 ) 5 00d
Cash management 5613 75
Equity 472 477
Fixed income i3 3504
Mubti-assct f, 130 HhhiT
15,548 10.590k3

Comtract assets
Contract assets relule W the Companys conditional rights to consideration for semvices, primarily relating o

pecrued income tor unhilled services. These are disclnsed as accrued income in note 10

5 Operating profit
Adrrived o afier charging (erediting)

1022 i
5 000 5 Do
Forgign exchange gains = 11
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BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A.

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

6 Auditors' remuneration

022 021
5000 s 000
Audit af the linancial satements l il

7 Imcome tax

The Company is subject 1o Luxembourg corporate income tax. municipal business wax and net wealth x; The
charge allecated w the Company as part of the fiscal unity o which it forms a pan ol representing corporale
income Lax, municipal business wy and net wealth tax s dhown below:

2022 plLrd |
5 oo 5 (M)
Current faxation
Luxermnibowrg corporation tax 115 L1
Luxembourg corporation tax adjusiments in respect of prior periods {105}
Nt wealth by - 33
Tital current income Lux 10 138
Fax expense in the income stitement 10 138

The tax on profit befire tax for the period is lower than (2021: lower than) the standard rate of corporation Lax in
Luxembourg of 24.94% (2021 24 94%),

022 hli ]|
S 000 S 000
Profil before tax 347 174
Corporation tax at stundard rate L0 43
{Deerense Fincrease in current s from adjustment in respect of prior
periods (105) I
Increase in current 1ax from unrecognised foreign exchange gans or
losses Trom tax statement of financial position revaluation kL] ]
et wealth tox - i1
Total tax charge 10 138

The Company notes recent developments in relation w the Organisation for Economic Co-operation and
Development (OECEN inclusive Fromework on Bose Erosicn and Profit Shifting which will set a new minimum
global corporate WX e of 15%, This may impact the Company”’s uture tax charge and effective tax rate bail ol
this stage it not possible to estimate the mpact on the BlackBock Group and thercfore the Company. Mo
dleferred Lax dassels or liabilities are recognised in the finencial statements in respect of such teoes.”
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BlackRock Fund Management Company 5. A.

Maotes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

8 Financial assets
3 December 31 December

M2 b1k
5 000 5 000
MNon-current linancial assers
Finanyial assas ot fair vatye through profit and loss 542 83l

Movement in non-current financial assets

A1 December A1 December

2022 2
§ Dm0 5 000
Cost
ALl Fanuary 23l =il
Aslditions 11 -
AL 3] Degember 542 %310

Fimancial assdts ot fair valve through profid and Loss represent the Company’s holdings i the Super
Bluncy Marky Fund, as outhined in e 9. Additions reproesent reinvested distributong.

9 Interests in unconsolldated structured entities

Fhe AUM of the Company as a1 31 Decombeor 2022 was 82 4bn ( 2021: 53 4bnj.

Mhe Company manaees imvesiment Tumds which are considered W be strociunsd entithes within the dedinition ol
IF RS 12 Disclosure of Interests in (ther Entities’. Stroctured entitics are not consslidsted as the Company does
o have "control” as defmed onder IFRS 10 "Consolidated Finanesal Sotements’. The Company receives an
interest in these unconsolidstod structured antities Greouph the recupt ol investment management, administrat
and distribulion lees from related parties. The unconsolidated structured entities are constiiuted o5 open=omed
an closed=emled invesiment companics

e uneonsolidaied stroeiensd embities have vanous investment objectives and podicies and are subject o the
terms and conditions ol their respective ollering doecumantation, Flowever. all tmconsolidated struetured entitics
invest capilal primarily from third-porty investors in a portiohio of asseis v order b provide 2 ratum o those
avestors from capital approciation of those assets, inceme nan those assers, or both, Acordingly, they arg
sudeuplibbe o markel price fisk snsing from uncerlamtics about Tature values of the assets they Tald

The uncunsolidated structured entities ane Ninanced through dquity capital prosvided by investors, Additionally,
the Compam: hoids an imvestment of 842,005 wnits {2021 830,593) in BlackRock Global lnvestment Series
Super Moncy M arkel Funad with 2 value of $8425 (2021 5231k ) Sec node 8 loe Jetails

he Bees receivad during the year W 51 December 2022, in relation b the above, werd 515.5438K (20210

S1095KE The carrving value on the statement ol linancial position &s at 31 Decembor 2022 is 53578k (2021
$2.5%2k ). as reprosented by acerued income:
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BlackRock Fund Management Company 5.A.

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2022 {continued)

4 Interests in unconsulidated structured entities (continwed )

Medmnnt exposare fo foss
The Company's maximum exposure o loss associated with its interest in these unconsolidated structured entities
i5 limited to the carmving amounis shown shove,

Financial support
The Company has nod peovided Minancial sopport to any of its onconsolidated stroctired entitics during the vear,
and has no contracteal obligations or current intention of providing linancial support i the future,

ke fformasion

There are no differences 1o the economic or voting rights attaching o tee equity held by the Company from
thiose held h}' her investors, There are nd Hquldll.:u SITANgemEnls, guariniees of other commitments that may
afleet the fair value or risk of the Company™s interedt in the unconsolidated struciuned entities,

10 Trade and other receivables

M December 31 December
022 2
& 0040 5 Do
Revervables from group companies 150 It
Agcrucd income 33TR 2.592
Ohher recemvables p] -
3578 29606
11 Share capital
Allatted. called up and fully paid shares
31 December 3 December
022 1021
Mo, 000 5 04 L] 5
Credinary shares o 512,50 cach 40 S0y A St

Lnd
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BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A.

Muotes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

12 {Mher reserves

Legal reserve
Luxembourg companies afe meguired 1o appropelate to the legal reserve a minimum of 5% of the annual net
inceme, after dedusting any losses brought forward. until such reserve coguals 10% of subseribed capital,

This reserve may not be distributed. in the form of cash dividends or stherwise, during the life of the Company.,

No allocations were madde in 2021 or 2022 ag the maximum 5506 had alrcady been reached, This reserve is
ingludied as other resarves in the siatement of (inancial position,

Net wealth tax reserve

e members” general meeting has ratified Use creation of o special net wealth tax reserve in order o reduce the
net wealth e pavable by the Company. This special reserve amounts to Give times the envisaged net wealth tix
credit. This special met wealth tax reserve has o remain unavailable for diswribution for fve years o take
advantage of the reduction in net wealth tax liability, This reserve is incleded as other reserves in the statemen
of linancial position.

Dwring the year, amounis totalling 532k (2021: $163k) were allocated w thee net wealth ax reserve,

Additonally, amounts tealling $403k (2021 $93%) relating to amounts transferred in prios years were released
from the net wealth tax reserve to rewained camings.

The net wealth tax reserve w31 Deeember 2022 amounted 1o STR0K (2021 S341K0

13 Trade and other pavahles
31 December 31 Decembeer

Fir] 21

S 000 S B0
Aeorued expenses kL 77
Amounts due o group companics 2504 1.861
Met wealth tax liability . K

2633 1.946

Al amounts due to group companies ane wsecured, intenest free and repayable an demsnd,

14 Dividends

The dircetors propose o final dividend of SNil (202 1: SNil) be made in respect of the financial year ended 31
[hegembier 2022,

Page 24

168/258



EDINETOOOO
O0OO00O0000000000o00o0noo0o0ogogodnoOn(es187)
Oooooooooooobooooooad

BlackRock Fund Management Company 5. A,

Maotes to the Financial Statemenis for the Year Ended 31 December 2022 (continued )

15 Fair value measurement

The fuar values of financial sssets and financial liabilities are determined as follows:

Level |« Fair value micasurement derived from quisted prices (unsdjusted) in sctive market prices for identical
assets or linbilities.

Level 2 = fair value measurement derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within level | that are
ubservable for the assel or Hability, either directly (e, as price or indirectly (e, derived from prices),

Level 3 = farr value measurement derived from unobservable inputs for the asset or lishilin.
The following tables provide the fair value measurement hierurchy of the Company’s assets and lighilities.

Assets measured at fair value

2022
Level 2 Tatal
S 009 5 00
Equity instrumenis %42 H42
Asaels measured at Guir value
0zl
Level 2 Total
5 000 S voo
Equity instrumenis B3l #il

There were no changes (o the valuution techniques during the vear,

16 Classification of financial and non-financial assets and financial and non-Minancial liabilivies

The classification of financial assets and fnancial liabilithes by accpunting categosisation for the yeor ending 31
December 2022 wos as follows:

Financial asseis  Financial asseix
& liabilivies an & liabilities at

amariised cost FYVTPL
= Mandatory = Mandatory
5 () 5 04
Assels
Non-current asscts
Oiher non-current financial asscts ] 242
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,355 "
Trude and oher receivables 1 80 -
Tostal mssels 1.515 142
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BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A.

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

16 Classification of financial and non-financial assets and finamncial and non-financial liabilities

{eomtinned)
Financial assets  Financial assets
& liabilities a1 & liabilities at
amortised cost FYTPL
= Mandatary « Mandatary
5 04 5 0
Liabilities

Current liabilities
Prade wind other payables 2633 -
Tostal Giahdlities 2633 =

The classilication of financial assets and financial Habilites by sccounting categorisation for the vear ending 310
December 2021 was as fdlows:

Financial assets  Financial asseis
& Habilities ar & liabilities at

amortised cost FVTPL
« Mandatory = Mandatory
5 (WK 5 (Wb
Asaels
Nof-current nssels
(her non-current financial awsets - 23]
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 934 #
Peade and other receivichles aTd -
Timal assets 1,328 Rl
Liabilities
Current labilities
rade and other payables 1546 -
Fesal liahalities 1948 -

Financial instruments measuared at fair valie
Far detuils of the fair value hicrarchy and valuation methods and sssumptions refer 1o note 15,

Financial instruments not measured at fair value

D tov their short-term nature, the n.'un'_\ril'tg value of cash and cash equivalents, trude ond other receivables, and
trade and other pavables approximates their value after taking into account ECLs, Al the stmement of lnangial
position due. o allowance has been revognised for impairment of frade and other receivables as ECLs are
wonsidered bo be immaterial
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BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A,

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2022 {continued)

17 Financial risk review
This rote peeseats infoemation about the Company 's exposare to fnancial risks and management of capital.

Credit risk and impairment

Credil risk arises in relation o trade receivables. surplus cash held in bank aceounts or held on account with
other BlackRock group companies as part of normal treasury operations. and other asset investiments, The risk
of default in relation w trade receivables grising from fee ingoemy recgivables is consadered low and the
Company minimises exposure W credit sk with respect o trade receivables by aetively pursuing setthement of
outstanding management fee invoices within the terms and conditions of the underlying  agrecment,
Intercompany balances are managed centrally and agreed upon and settled on a regular basis,

Mot receivables that are overdue are not considered o be impaired, A receivable will not be impaired unless
the expected cash flows, discounted ot the original effective interest rate, are less than the carryving value. For
trasde receivables, the Company adopts the simplified single loss rote approach to determine Hs average
historical loss rate. building o this caloulation futere cvemts and the likelibood that debt will be recovered in
the fuwre. The resulting ECL rate is immaterial o the Company and no allowance has been recognised.

The Company applics a practical expedient 1 s assessment of BECLs for intercompany receivables. Given the
lack of intercompany defaults in the past and fuluee projected results. the Company does nol propose
recognising an ECL allowance on any of its intercompany positions. The ECLs on other receivables are
considercd 1o be immaterial and no allowance has been recognised in the financial susiements,

The carrving amount of the financial assets disclosed in note 16 represents the Company’s maximum exposure
w eredit nsk #5 no collateral or credit enhancements are held,

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the Company’s capial and’or camings may be impacted by changes in forcign
exchange rates, interest rates and market prices.

Foreign exchange rivk

Forcign exchange rsk arises where the Company’s foreign currency assets are not maiched by labilities
denominated in the sume currency . [n addinon, forcign exchunge exposures arise on a transactional basis largely
in relation to Fee income which is denominsied in non-funciional currencies, The Company derives revenues
from investment management and distabation fees denominated in U3 dollar, Expenses are mainly denominated
in Euro and as a consequence the Company”s revendes may fhuctuate as a result of Euro and US dollar exchange
MOvEmEnis,

Foreign currency exposures ane masnitored regularly and minimised. Foreign currency exposures thin arise in
relation to nonsoperativnal items ore wsually large in nature and sre managed on o cese-byv-case basis. Forgign

currency exposures relating o imercompany payables and receivables with other BlackRock group entities are
managed atilising foreign exchange forward contracts,
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BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A.

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2022 {continued)

17 Financial risk review {continued)

Sensiiiviiy amerlysis

The sensitivity analvsis covers the Ninancial instruments of each of the satement ol Bnancial position dates and
assumes chonges in morket varighles, It should however be noted that due (o the inherent unceriainty in the
wirld of financial markets the assumptions made may differ significantly from the sctual outeome particularky
s markel risks tend o be iiterdependent and are therefore unlikely 1o move in isolation

Euro exchange rates are sssumed o increase or decrease by 20%. 20% is the sensitivity rute wsed when
reporting  forgign currency sk intornally w0 Kev  management personnel and represems management’s
sesessment of 3 reasonably possible change in forcign exchange rales.

IF the Evro exchange rate increased by 20%, profit ond equity would decrease by S9%.
If the Euro exchange rate decreased by 20%, profin and equity would increase by S5k,

18 Reluted party transactions

The transactions with related parties that occurred during the year related o serviee charges with other entities
controtled by the ultimate parent undentaking.

Income and recelvables from related parties

Fellow
subsidiaries
022 5 000
Amounts receivable from relaed pany LE:11]
Fellow
subsidinries
w02 5 My
Amounts receivable from related party 374
Expenditure with and pavahles ta related partics
Fellow
subsidiaries
022 5 000
Otsourced ATFM services and retrocessions 14,50
(ther expenses 92
15061
Amgunts payable to related party 20K
Fellow
subsidiaries
021 5 000
Dutsourced AIFM services and retrocessbions 10,594
[ither expenses s
11LAED
Ampunts payable o related party 1861
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BlackRock Fund Management Company 5.A.

MNotes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2022 (continued )

I8 Relsted party transactions contineed)

There were no lowns 10 uny felated parties during the period

1" Parent and wltimate parent undertaking

The Company’s immediate helding compuny is BlackRock Geoup Limited - Lusernbourg Branch. The witimate
parent company and comrolling party is BlackRaock, Ing., 3 company ingorporated in the State of Diclavane in
the United States of America. The parent compary of the largest and smallest group that includes the Compamy
and for which SroUp acoounls ane prepangd 15 MlackBock. Inc {'upie; of the group financiol statements are
available upon request fromm the Investor Belations website al www. blackrock com o requests may be addressed
e Imvestor Betations ar 30 Hudson Yords, New York, BY 100535, UISA o h} ermail at mveel e blackrock com

Page 29

173/258



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

174/258



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

175/258



¢

EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

176/258



(@

(e

(f

(

12 31

EDINETOOOO

O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)

177/258

2010

Ooooooooooooooooooad



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

¢!

BlackRock Asset Management lreland Limited

2022 12 125,001 2,171
2023 31
173.69
1995 19
BlackRock, Inc.

(¢

BlackRock Investment Management (UK) Limited

2022 12 94,484,949 164 1,109

G

State Street Bank International GmbH, Luxembourg Branch

2023 2,952,092,998.10 4,429 3,203

2023 31
150.04
2009

10
4

J.P. Morgan SE, Luxembourg Branch

2023

37,553 6,345

Societas Europaea
Bundesanstalt fir Finanzdienstleistungsaufsicht, BaFin
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€] BlackRock
Operations (Luxembourg) S.a r.|

2022 12 2,623,500 9,363
(6

2023 405
¢

2023 12,200
@

BlackRock Asset Management lreland Limited

179/258



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(¢
BlackRock Investment Management (UK) Limited

BlackRock (Channel Islands)
Limited 1972 10

@3

State Street Bank International GmbH, Luxembourg Branch

¢
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4

J.P. Morgan SE, Luxembrourg Branch

@ BlackRock
Operations (Luxembourg) S.a r.1I

(6

7
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1915 1915 10
1993 1993
2002 2002 12 20
2007 2007 13
2010 2010 12 17
2013 2013 12
2016 2016 23
@
@
()
2013 39
2011 2011 61
2011
2009
1993
2010
2010
2009 13 2009 65
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1959

1959
Holding

2023 30 1,902

Z investissement en capital a risque)

2023 30
1965
1983
1999
1.
1.1.
1988
1915
1.2.
1983 25
1988 3 30
2002

108 2002
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2023 30 1,191 2010

9,118 7,100

Pan-
Selected Risks Investments

Commonwealth and European Investment Trust

1967 1968
United States Trust Investment Fund
203 (société d
1,914 9,200
1,390 2,700
19 1972 12 22
20 1998 22
30
1998 12 23
1983 25
85 611
1988 30
85 611 2001 107 2001
2002 12 31 2003
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2010
2014 91
2010

2010

2010
2023

82

1.3.

2007

2007

1.4.
2016

2016

2. 2010

2010
2002
2013

2010

2022

13

2013

2019

2013

12 24

2002

15

2016

845

20

2007

2017

22 12 23
2021 12
25

1991
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2004 13 1988 30
2007 13
2014 23
2010 2011 2012
2013
2014 23 2014 91
2016 10 2016 12
2019 1160 2021 21 2021 12
2021 12
2009 65
15 2021 2261 2022
1991 19 1999
1991
2007 2013 15
2019 11 238
18 514
2019 16
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fonds commun de placement

2010 1915
2.2.
2010
2023 2010 174 2002 129
2003 14
2.2.1.
2010 41
1134 1710 1779 1787 1984
2010
2010 12 2010
11
125
250
2010 15

2010 16

186/258



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2010

2.2.1.1.
2010

2010 41 52

10

10
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2018 18 02

50 @av) 10
12
2011 30 11 512
11 512 2010 28 2011 14
2010 12 22 No.10
11 512
2010
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1,000 2013 34
2010 41
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40
20
35
2019 11 27 2019 2162
2022
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25 2022
80
10
10
40
35
2013 34
20
11 15 10
20
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20
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2002 11 27 02 77 2021 18
° 85 611 EEC
2007 2007 19 2007 16
2002 2008
2008
e 2008 2008 19 08
339 2008 11 26 08 380
08 339 2002 2008
°
2008
11 512 08 356
08 356
e 2008 11 26 08 380
08 339
—2007
07 044
08 380
85 611 21
e 2011 2010 19
10 049
[ ]
2010 2010 43 2010 12 22
No.10 04
°
2010 2010 44 2010 12 22
No.10
[ ]
2011 15 11 509 2021 28
21 778
° No.10
2011 30 11 512

11 512 18 698
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2012 12 540
° 2014
22 14 591
o 2014 30 14 592
2014 937 13 559 2012
2012 832
14 592
2015 2365
. 10
049 2014 12 14 598
° 2015 27
15 609
° 2015 12 15 627
° 2015 12 28 15 631
° 2010 |
2016 10 11 16 644 16 644 2018 23
18 697
° 2018 23
18 698
e 2018 10
2019 30 19 718
°
2019 15 19 719
° 2019 12 20
19 733
° 19 2020 10
20 740
e 2004 11 12
2010
17 650 2020 20 744
° 2020 12
18 20 764
° 12 2021 13
21 770
° 35
36 1952 2021 30 21 779
° 2021 12 22
21 788
° 2021 12 22
21 789

2021 12 22 21 790
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2019 1156
34 45 1272 2019 20
No 345 2013 ( ) No 346 2013
No 1286 2014 2022 31 22 795
EBA 2022 22 22
805
2022 22 22 806
2019 02
2022 12 22 810
2022 16 22 811
2022 10 27
22 822
28
2023 24 23 831
2023 16
23 835
2008 2010
2010
2020 1.13
23 2008
34
41
2021 11
i
20 i
il
2022 12
31 2021 12
2011 30
11 512 18 698

2011 12 31
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2014 937
2010
2010 91
2010 1991 21
91 75 02 80
2.2.1.2.
2010 15
2010 16
2010 16 15
2.2.1.2.1. 2010 16
125 125 126 16
2010 2010 125 2010 125
2010 125
() 2010 125
2010 89
2010 88

2013
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2010 129

16
12
16

2010
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2010 125
2010 125
2010 88
2013
2013
2013

2013

2010 16

2010

104 2.2.1.2.2 17 18

2.2.1.2.2. 2010 15
101 124 15

15
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2010

1993 18
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2.2.1.2.2.

1993 97
2000 27

203/258



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2010 15

2010 15

204/258



50

50

50

40

EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

60

205/258



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2010
14
2010 53
1993
2010
1993 37
1993 37
2010
16
2010 15
2010
2018 23 18 698 18 698

206/258



EDINETOOOO
O00oDOoO0ooDo0ooo00oDo0oDo00oo0ooodno(esLos?)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

18 698
2010 15 2010 16 125
125 2010 17
2010 27
2013 2013
2012 10 24 12 546
18 698
18 698
2.2.1.3.
2014 11
14 587
14 587
14 587
91 75
14 587 16 644
2014 23 2016
18
2016 10 13 2015 12 17
2016 10 2010
2016 10 11
16
644 16 644 14 587
2010
2018 23 2010
18 697 18 697
2010
16 644 1998 30
91 75

05 177 18 697
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2010
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12
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2010

2.2.1.2.2. 21 22
2018 23 18 698
2.3.
1983
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2013
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87

58

87

tribunal administratif

2.3.1.3.1. 1972 12 22

1991 21
25 38

2.3.1.3.2. 1945 10 17

Institut Monétaire Luxembourgeois

22

2010

2.3.1.3.3. 2010

21

91 75
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2010
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réviseur d*entreprises agréé
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2010 155
97 136 08 348 15 627 2002
2010
2015 12
15 627
1915 2010
2.3.2.
2.3.1.1. 2004 11 12 12-02
12-02
2020 24 12-
02 2020 14 20-05 2020 24
2010 2020 14

20-05 2020 14
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Cellule de Renseignement Financier
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2010
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2.6.1.
2.6.1.1.
2008 12 19
75
2.6.1.2. taxe d"abonnement
2010 174
0.05
2010 174 0.01
2010
2010 174 2010 41
2003 14
12
2010 174
2019 2088 2020 18 2020 852
2020 852
2010 174
2020 852
2010 154 réviseur d ~
entreprisesagreéé 2016 23 62

Institut des Réviseurs d ” Entreprises
réviseur d~

entreprises agréé

réviseurd ~ entreprises agréé

taxe d"abonnement

Administration de I ”Enregistrement et des Domaines et de

la TVA 2010 177
2020 852
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To the Unitholders of

BlackRock Global Investment Series

35A, avenue J.F. Kennedy

L-1855 Luxembourg

Grand Duchy of Luxembourg

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR®"S REPORT

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of BlackRock Global Investment Series (the““Fund””)
and of each of its Portfolios, which comprise the statement of net assets and the portfolio
of investments as at 31 January 2022 and the statement of operations and changes in net
assets for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Fund and of each of its Portfolios as at 31 January 2022, and of
the results of their operations and changes in their net assets for the year then ended in
accordance with Luxembourg legal and regulatory requirements relating to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Law of 23 July 2016 on the audit profession
(Law of 23 July 2016) and with International Standards on Auditing (I1SAs) as adopted for
Luxembourg by the““Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier””(CSSF). Our
responsibilities under the Law of 23 July 2016 and ISAs as adopted for Luxembourg by the
CSSF are further described in the““Responsibilities of the Independent Auditor for the Audit
of the Financial Statements””section of our report. We are also independent of the Fund in
accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants, including
International Independence Standards, issued by the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants (IESBA Code) as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements, and have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities under those ethical requirements. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Other information
The Board of Directors of the Fund®s Management Company is responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information stated in the annual report but

does not include the financial statements and our Independent Auditor®s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report this fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors of the Fund"s Management Company for the
Financial Statements

The Board of Directors of the Fund"s Management Company is responsible for the preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with Luxembourg legal and
regulatory requirements relating to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements, and for such internal control as the Board of Directors of the Fund"s Management
Company determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors of the Fund"s Management
Company is responsible for assessing the Fund®s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors of the Fund"s Management Company either
intends to liquidate the Fund or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

Responsibilities of the Independent Auditor for the Audit of the Financial Statements

The objectives of our audit are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an Independent Auditor®s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with the Law dated 23 July 2016 and with I1SAs as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with the Law dated 23 July 2016 and with ISAs as adopted

for Luxembourg by the CSSF, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund"s internal control.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors of the
Fund®s Management Company.
Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors of the Fund"s Management
Company use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Fund"s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
Independent Auditor®s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our Independent Auditor®s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Fund to cease to continue as a going concern.
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

For Deloitte Audit, Cabinet de révision agréé

Justin Griffiths, Réviseur d"entreprises agréé
Partner

25 May 2022
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To the Unitholders of

BlackRock Global Investment Series

35A, Avenue J.F. Kennedy

L-1855 Luxembourg

Grand Duchy of Luxembourg

REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of BlackRock Global Investment Series (the““Fund””)
and of each of its Portfolios, which comprise the statement of net assets and the statement
of investments and other net assets as at 31 January 2023 and the statement of operations
and changes in net assets for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Fund and each of its Portfolios as at 31 January 2023, and of the
results of their operations and changes in their net assets for the year then ended in
accordance with Luxembourg legal and regulatory requirements relating to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Law of 23 July 2016 on the audit profession
(Law of 23 July 2016) and with International Standards on Auditing (I1SAs) as adopted for
Luxembourg by the““Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier””(CSSF). Our
responsibilities under the Law of 23 July 2016 and ISAs as adopted for Luxembourg by the
CSSF are further described in the““Responsibilities of the Independent Auditor for the Audit
of the Financial Statements””section of our report. We are also independent of the Fund in
accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants, including
International Independence Standards, issued by the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants (IESBA Code) as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements, and have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities under those ethical requirements. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Other information
The Board of Directors of the Fund®s Management Company is responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information stated in the annual report but

does not include the financial statements and our report of the Independent Auditor thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report this fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors of the Fund"s Management Company for the
Financial Statements

The Board of Directors of the Fund"s Management Company is responsible for the preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with Luxembourg legal and
regulatory requirements relating to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements, and for such internal control as the Board of Directors of the Fund"s Management
Company determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors of the Fund"s Management
Company is responsible for assessing the Fund®s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors of the Fund"s Management Company either
intends to liquidate the Fund or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

Responsibilities of the Independent Auditor for the Audit of the Financial Statements

The objectives of our audit are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue a report of the Independent Auditor that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with the Law dated 23 July 2016 and with ISAs as adopted for Luxembourg by the
CSSF will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with the Law dated 23 July 2016 and with ISAs as adopted

for Luxembourg by the CSSF, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund"s internal control.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors of the
Fund®s Management Company.
Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors of the Fund"s Management
Company use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Fund"s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
report of the Independent Auditor to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our report of the Independent Auditor.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Fund to cease to continue as a going
concern.
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

For Deloitte Audit, Cabinet de révision agréé

Virginie NG Wing Lit - Boulot, Réviseur d"entreprises agréé
Partner

25 May 2023
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To the sole Shareholder of

BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR™S REPORT

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of BlackRock Fund Management Company S.A. (the
““Company””), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022, the
income statement, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2022, and of its financial performance
and of its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Law of 23 July 2016 on the audit profession
(Law of 23 July 2016) and with International Standards on Auditing (I1SAs) as adopted for
Luxembourg by the ““Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier®” (CSSF). Our
responsibilities under those Law and standards are further described in the
““Responsibilities of the Independent Auditor for the Audit of the Financial Statements””
section of our report. We are also independent of the Company in accordance with the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants® Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (IESBA Code) as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements, and have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities under those ethical requirements. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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Other information

The Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information stated in the annual report but does not include the financial
statements and our Independent Auditor®s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report this fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, and for such
internal control as the Board of Directors determines is necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing
the Company"s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of
Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Responsibilities of the Independent Auditor for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
Independent Auditor®s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Law of
23 July 2016 and with ISAs as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with the Law of 23 July 2016 and with ISAs as adopted for
Luxembourg by the CSSF, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company®"s internal control.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors.
Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors® use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company"s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our Independent Auditor®s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our Independent Auditor®s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

The Director™s report is consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared in
accordance with applicable legal requirements.

For Deloitte Audit, Cabinet de Révision Agréé

Sandrine Muller, Réviseur d"Entreprises Agréé
Partner

19 April 2023
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